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March 10,1977 

The House met at 3 p.m. 

Mr. Speaker in the Chair. 

Tape Fl79 

MR. SPEAKER.: Order please! 

AH-1 

I would like to welcome to the House of 

Assembly three p:roups of students who ·are here this afternoon: 

from St. Paul's Central Hi~h School at Harbour Grace, sixtv-four 

grade seven aP.d eight students,accompanied by their teachers, 

Hr. Clyde Reynolds, Hrs Pauline Snow and Mrs Julia !'l'oores; from 

St. Augustines Elementary School in St. John's,twelve grade 

eight students accompanied by their teacher,Sister Josette 

Hutchings;and from Vaters Collegiate in St. John's,twelve grade 

eight students accompanied by two teachers, Mrs Fred Halfyard 

and Mr. Jim Bowden. 

On behalf of all hon. members from both sides of the House 

I welcome these young men and women and their teachers to the 

Rouse of Assemblv. 

SOHE ·HON • r'cr1·IDF.RS : Hear, hear! 

MR. SPEAKER:· I am also pleased to note in the Speaker ' s Gallery 

the presence of a former Member of the House Assembly and former 

Member of Parliament from Nm~foundland,}l.r. Charles r.ran~er. 

HR. ROBERTS: A Privy Councilor. 

MR. SPEAKER: A Privy Councilor. 

SOME HON. HEHRERS: Hear, hear! 

~!R. SPEAKF.R: And I should add,for han. members who m~y not he 

aware, Privy Councilor. 

STATEMENTS BY MINISTER 

MR. SPEAKER: The minister of Tourism • 

MR. HICKEY: ~fr. Sneaker, I wish to make the following statement 

concerning the Domestic Travel Survey. 

The Survey tJill be conducted throughout the Province durinp.; the 

next twelve months. The purpose of the study is to obtain 

comprehensive and reliable information relating to travel of and 

by the residents of the Province. The Province has been broken down 
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MR. HICKEY: 

into five regions for surveying purposes. TP.ey are as folloW5: 

The Avalon Peninsula., Burin-Bonavista Peninsulas, Central 

Net~foundland, t.fest:ern Newfoundland and Labrador. Formal interviews 

conducted via telephOne commenced on the evening of March 2nd. 

All interviews will be cpnducted during the evening hours. 

The Domestic Travel Survey will enable the department to 

apply the results to the following purposes: 

(1) Economic R~searclr To determine the amounts residents 

spend on travel and tourism associated activities in the 

Province and outside of the Provinee. In other words,the 

economic value of the Province of Intra-Provincial trave·l by 

residents; 

(2) Marketing Research - To identify origins and destinations 

of travel by residents which will become input to an advertising 

program designed to encourage residents to stay at home. This 

pl'ogratn -t.muld be a '·step towsrds ·bringing ·an awareness of .the 

Province's tourism potential to the residents; 

(3) Development Research - To identif? ar~as of the Province 

most visited or not visited,and to determine the reasons why. 

Furtlter,-
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Mr. Hickey: 

to determine what the residents of Newfoundland and Labrador 

require from a travel point of view. 

The end result of the survey being the further 

development of the Province's va~uable tourism resource. Because 

of the importance of the study,as outlined,! appeal to all 

people who will be contacted for their co-operation with the 

interviewer. Interviewers have been sworn to secrecy and all 

information gathered will be strictly confidential. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member from Conception Bay South. 

MR. NOLAN: Yes, I would appreciate having a copy of the 

minister's remarks,if I may. We listened with great interest to 

what he had to say. And the survey will be quite interesting 

particularly as it applies to domestic travel and the fact that 

maybe Newfoundlan~·-C:::.: <loc'lll~,.~-·! opportunity to get - I remember 

the Americans for a long while I think from Chevrolet on 

cemmericals .used .to run ads, "See America F.irst!' Ma:ybe we should 

start thinking about Newfoundlanders having a greater opportunity 

to see more of their Province. 

As a matter of fact it is a matter of personal 

regret to me that I was not spccessful irt one foolish venture 

perhaps that I had in mind at one time. And I always felt 

that young people in Newfoundland,perhaps adults as well,should 

have had an opportunity to see Churchill Falls before it 

disappeared. And I made an attempt in one area to try to get 

something done in that regard •. ! did not get very far with it at 
/1 • 

the time, I did it publicly. But I thought that you should have 

had an opportunity to see that. I only mention that in passing . 

because the marketing research that the minister refers to should 

be most interesting. It is not my purpose,at least on behalf of 

our group,to object to this. We would like to have more detail 

obviously than we have at the moment. 
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Mr. Nolan: 

I wonder if it is permissible, Mr. Speaker, if I 

could just sound off for a moment on another little pet theme of 

mine for the benefit of the Minister of Tourism in connection 

with this, not only to make Newfoundland better known to Newfound-

1anders,which was the theme-

MR. WHITE: A great slogan. 

MR. NOLAN: - that used to be espoused by a certain gentleman to 

my right, at least every evening for a number of years. 

MR. SIMMONS: Thank you, 'John! 

MR. NOLAN: I did not know you did it, 'Roger'. But 

anyway - I was not aware that the hon. member was at one time 

a barrelman in some part of Newfoundland. But there is one little 

thing I have often thought about and I am wondering if perhaps the 

minister might not consider it, and it is this; I have always 

felt that there are fillers used on radio all across Canada and 

throughout the world in fact, and short one line facts on Newfoundland, 

one or two lines, short paragraphs~could be used as fillers taped 

here in Newfoundland and -

MR. WHITE: So long as they are not turned in jokes. 

MR. NOLAN: Pardon? 

MR. WHITE: As long as they are not turned into jokes. 

MR. NOLAN: As long as they are not turned into Newfy jokes, of 

course. And I certainly did not mean that obviously. 

MR. SIMMONS: Or government propaganda • 

MR. NOLAN: Or government propaganda or any propaganda, I 

mean it is propaganda for Newfoundland. 

MR. NOALN: On short facts, have them recorded,which will cost 

very little,incidentially,if it was done right, and put into every 

radio station across Canada, I am sure you would get the Canadian 

Association of Broadcasters and ot~er groups, the Atlantic Association 

of Broadcasters to assist in this, and they would be there, they 

would not necessarily be paid for spots, I am not suggesting that, 
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Mr. Nolan .: 

they would be fillers. And I believe that it might be something 

for the minister to consider one t1me, and I would be quite happy 

to talk to him abou·t it any time. 

SOME HON. m:MBERS : Hear, hear! 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Minister of Public Works. 

MR. J. ROUSSEAU: Mr. Speaker, I would like to make a 

nine p·ages so if hon. members will stay with me. 

MR. NEARY: Can we have copiesZ 

MR. ROUSSEAU: Yes~copies will be distributed. I will try 

to be as comprehensive as I can. After I have given this I will 

be prepared then in the days ahead to handle specific questions. 

My acting Deputy Minister and other officials ,I assume ,will 

appear before the Public Accounts Committee and will give any other 

details that are wanted,'!>eeause certainly there is nothing to hide 

as far as the department is concerned in this instance. But I 

will try to make it as specific as possible but'llike I say, 

where there are in the future individual questions, if I cannot 

give the answers at the moment they are posed I certainly will 

undertake to get them as soon as possible. 
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Mr. Rousseau, 

My statement will deal in the first instance with the comments 

of the Auditor General as they appear in his report on the 

Department of Public Works and Services, pages 103 to 113. 

No. 92. Overpayment for leased office space. In January.1975 - . 
my department in consultation with the Department of Social 

S~rvices agreed to relocate the nelfare Office at Marystown 

to more suitable accommodation which was offered to my department 

at a rental rate considerably less than the renewable rate offered 

by the then lessor. The Auditor General's statement that my 

department made a rent overpayment of $3,370 is based on 

a clause in our standard rental agreement to the effect that payment 

of rent by the tenant shall be waived until all repairs and 

alteration~ are satisfactorily completed. In this particular 

instance that clause was negated by the lessor's letter -

MR. WHITE: To a point of order. 

MR.. SPEAKER: A poirtt of order has "ome up. 

MR. WHITE: 'Hr. Speaker, I am listening with interest to try 

to hear what the hon. minister is announcing today, and there 

several conversations going on on the other side, and I cannot hear it. 

SOME HON. ME?!BERS: Hear, hear! 

}~. SPEAKER: I would ask hon. members to observe the request 

of the hon. gentleman to my right so that he may hear the hon. 

minister without difficulty. 

The han. minister. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: The Auditor General's statement that my 

department made a rent overpayment of $3,370 is based on a clause 

in our standard rental agreement to the effect that payment of 

rent by the tenant shall be waived until all repairs and alterations 

are satisfactorily completed. In this particular instance that 

clause was negated by the lessor's letter dated January 28, 1975 

which quoted a rental rate of $4.85 per square foot per annum-·valid 

only on the basis that rental payments would become effective 

February 1, 1975. Because of the untoward delay in making the premises 

I 
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Mr. Rousseau. 

suitable for occupancy my department, after considerable negotiations 

with the lessor settled on the compromise date of May 1, 1975, 

thus effecting a saving of three months rent. 

No. 93,, Expenditure without legislative appropriation. 

This refers to the purchase of the Whitbourne Dental Clinic which 

had been in operation in the area since 1973 - first by the owner 

on a fee-for-service basis and subsequently by the Department of 

Health under a lease agreement. Dr. Bennett, who had relocated in 

St, John's, advised the Department of Health in February,I974 

that he wished to discontinue the rental agreement and sell the 

property. The department, at the request of the Department of 

Health and with Treasury Board approval (TBM 386 -'75) purchased 

the property for $24,000 - $4,500 below the appraised value. 

The cost was allocated to Subhead 1803.05, Buildings, Construction 

and Alterations (Capital) on the basis that it covers not only 

new construction and major alterations but also the purchase 

of existing structures - the end use being synonymous. The Auditor 

General disagrees with our interpretation. Perhaps my department 

should amend the wording of this particular Subhead in order to 

provide for similar emergency purchases which may arise at some 

future date. 

No. 94 0 Disputed application of spending authority. 

It is true that certain general service charges are voted by 

the Legislature on the basis of the Estimates of the Department of 

Public Works and Services and Appendix IV of the approved Estimates 

for 1975-76 does show details of the estimated expenditures --

__!iR. SMALLWOOD: What is all the noise? 

MR. ROUSSEAU: I do not know, Mr. Speaker. I am having 

trouble reading and thinking myself with the noise, you know, in the 

Chamber, around the Chamber, out of the Chamber and everywhere else. 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. DOODY: 

There seems to be a hum all around. 

It is outside. It is not in here. 
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MR. NOLAN: I assume wha.t the member .is referring to is 

a point of order, and I certainly could not help but suppprt him 

in this as I am sure we all do. There is one heck of a hum 

going around here. And whether it is inside or outside th~ House -

well if it is outside the House, of course, it is completely out of 

order anyway, and inside the House I would assume the Speaker 

obviously will make a ruling on that - but the minister is now 

attempting, as I understand it, to answer a number of questions 

which are of vital interest not only to this House but in many areas 

of the Province and surely we can find some way - it is not beyond 

the wit of this House - to see that he is heard in silence. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear: 

MR. SPEAKER: Hon. members will please endea'ITour to remain 

silent so that all han. members can hear the minister's statement. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: Thank you very much, Mr. Speaker. 

I was not referring to within the Chamber. 

I think I was referring to without the Chamber. 

This is No. 94. Disputed application of 

spending authority. 

iZ427 
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~!R. ROUSSEAU: 

It is true that certain general service charges are voted by the 

legislature on the basis of the esti~ates of the Department of 

IB-1 

Public Harks and Services: and Appendix IV of the approved estimates for 

1975-1976 does show details of the estimated expenditures which are 

applicable to the various departments of government. The amounts 

allocated to each department set the limit of expenditures which the 

department may properly incur for subsequent transfer to the respective 

departments. 

Because of the peculiar and essential nature of these general 

services my department for a variety of reasons is often forced to 

rearrange the order of expenditures during the year. It is generally 

agreed that to approach Treasury Board in each instance where a 

non-budgeted item is essential would create unnecessary and undue 

expense as to time, effort and paper work, not to mention the delay 

in providing essential government services. It is imrossible to 

budget for serviees .of.which-we may not even be aware seventeen or 

eighteen YllOnths in advance. Our record will shot,•, however, that t~here 

major differences are involved Treasury Board approval is invariably 

requested. 

The services provided comprise some 260 subdivisions and 

represent the follmving categories in each departmental vote~ Nui'T'ber 

one, repairs and maintenance to public buildings and grounds; t~o70 

rentals, cleanjng, light, etc.; 'three construction and alterations; 

four office supplies and advertising; five office furniture and 

equipment; six printing -and· photography. 

While different allocations are occasionally set up with the 

six general service votes, they are not really new from a cost ~oint 

of view, rather they represent the transfer of an authorized allocation 

from one departlllent to another; for example, the occupant of a buildin~ 

may belong to a division of Read X, This ~ccupant IT'ay vacate and a new 

occupant of,say,Head Y may t11ove in. The service budget for this 

building must then be transferred from Head X to HeadY. The normal 

procedure is to forward a me~orandum to the Comptroller requesting a 
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MR. ROUSSEAU: 

transfer of the relaten budget. In spite o~ the Auditor General's 

comments it is my considered opinion that (a) transfers between 

departments within the service votes are inevitable; (b) there is 

bound to be a multiplicity of these transfers; (c) the delays in 

seeking the Board's approval- Treasury Board that is -would seriously 

impede the provision of Government services and involve costly 

administrative ~mrk;and (d) the Department of Public Harks and Services 

should be given the approval to continue transfers within the general 

service votes, after it has been voted for within the legislature. 

Number 95, Failure to comply with Order-in-Council. The Auditor 

General's state~ent that my department does not comply with the 

appropriate Order-in-Council is not fully correct • Number (1) 

the space leased at Marystown I have already dealt with to some 

extent,which was Section 92 of his report. It ~-ms, in effect, the 

renewal of an existing lease for which my departl!lent did not require 

Treasm;y Board approval since no ne1<• public expenditure was involved. 

The relocation from one lessor to another rli~ in fact represent a 

saving of $5,951.85 compared to the reneHal of the existing contract 

with the lessor. 

(11) Buildings 34, 35, and 86, Goose Bay, were leased for an 

interim period on a $1.00 per year basis from the Department of 

Transport, Canada, pending the takeover of the Goose Day facilitjes 

by the Provincial Government. Negotiations were handled by the 

Department of Education and the Department of Industrial DevelopMent. 

The Department of Public Works acted as a leasing agency, following 

Treasury Board approval in September of 1973 of our request for funds 

covering necessary repairs and maintenance of the buildings concerned. 

The formal lease was not entered into until January, 1974. It would 

appear, therefore, that Treasury Board was fully conversant ~dth the 

situation and had no objection to the interim arrangement • 

(111) - and I forget exactly which building that was - admittedly 

we erred, throup,h an oversight, in not seeking Treasury Board approval 

2429 

j 



~t.arcb 10, 19 77 Tape 882 

MR . ROUSSEAU: 

for 283 square feet over and above what was originally approved 

by Treasury Bo3rd in t his instance. 

IB-3 

Section 96 of the Auditor General 's report, Weaknesses in 

internal control over the spending of public monies. I agree ~~th 

the Auditor General that my department should not be using direct 

purchase order forms as work orders covering repa irs and maintenance 

of buildings . This is a fairly recent development which was accepted 

by the department with considerable reluctance following directions 

from the Government PurchPsing Division in order to implement Government 's 

decision to reduce the 

Z430 
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MR. ROUSSF.AU: number and variety of forms in use at that time. 

Prior to that,the department used a separate work order book to 

which the restrictions referred to by the Auditor General did 

not apply and could not therefore be made to apply simply 

by changing the work order form. Becaus.e of the nature of the 

work involved it has always been difficult to place a limit 

on the expenditure covered by a work order. Their prime purpose 

is to regulate and control work to the extent approved by the authority 

of the Minister of Public Works and Services. It is my considered 

opinion that a separate work order book should be reinstated and I shall 

be pursuing this at a later date. 

And that is where the $100 comes in; under a 

purchase order for the direct purchase of materials, you are 

on an urgent job, a man is able on an inspector's okay 

to purchase $100 through a purchase order. But that is not the 

work order. The ~~ork order was used in a purchase order book 

which,as I say,will be rectified. There should certainly be 

two orders, one a purchase order and one a work order. 

The three companies, labeled A, B and C by the 

Auditor General as receiving substantial amounts of work,are considered 

by departmental officials to he_ extremely well qualified with an 

adequate supoly of personnel and equipment to enable them to undertake 

the many complex iobs required by the DePartment, sometimes on verv 

short notice. The Auditor General failed to point out that some 

16 or so companies are actually employed by the Department from 

time to time,denending on availabilitv and the complexity of the 

job. Any of the companies used by the Department must be prepared, 

on very short notice, to answer an emergency call for maintenance 

of one sort or another. And I have not put in Exon House, a hospital, 

a boiler blowing, a circuit blowing, this sort of thing which are 

the details I say that I would certainly make available to the House 
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MR. ROUSSEAU: should they require that, 

MR. NEARY: Who are companies A, B, and C? 

MR. ROUSSEAU: Any of the companies used by the department must 

be prepared on very short notice to answer an emergency call for 

maintenance of one sort or another •. They provide service on call at all 

hours, weekend and holidays included, and any contractor not meeting 

this criteria immediately loses any standing he may have with the 

Department. The rapidly increasing exoenditure in our day to day 

maintenance programme brought about undoubtedly by increased 

material and labor cost, has been a matter of great concern and durin~ 

the past year the department has initiated sutdies,in consultation 

with Treasury Eoard, regarding various procedures which may be 

implemented to try and reduce this cost. It is hoped that 

some of these procedures will be implemented in the new fiscal 

year. 

However. we are cognizant of the problems that 

have developed ovr the oast few years - increased cost due to inflation, 

wages and cost of materials. Surely it is not impossible to understand 

how costs have increased over the past five years or so and further 

understand that total amounts do not represent only an increase 

in expenditure but rather an increase in costs. And I sup,gest 

there is a very fine difference there but there is a difference, 

It is unfortunate that the issuance of several 

orders for what is basically the same job,or at least the same 

building,tends to create the impression it is a deliberte effort 

to circumvent the Public Tender Act. Such, however, is not the 

case. In most instances it is difficult, if not impossible to 

accurately estimate the final cost and because of the nature and 

urgency of the pro1ect it is not considered feasible to prepare 

necessary nlans, specificiations, etc., to enable us to invite public 

tenders. The following jobs listed by the Auditor General are 

prime example- and I am going to go through each of the seven or eight 

different buildings he names in a list: 
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MR. ROUSSF..AU: 

Building No. 4, Sanatorium - $15,506 

When this building was vacated by the Department 

of Health it was tentaviely scheduled for use as a Boys' Home. 

During preliminary renovations by our departmental construction staff 

it was discovered that a new electrical service and other essential 

electrical repairs were necessary. The cost of this work was 

underestimated but considering the nature of the work this is, 

I suggest,understandable. Nobody when they first went down 

to work there thought the work would be $15,000 and that is 

unestimation of the actual cost of the job by the departmental 

officials. 

District Vocational School, St. Anthony - $16,157 (6 work orders) 

The main switch gear in this building caught 

fire and destroyed much of the service equipment, leaving the 

building without power and heat. In order to avoid closing the school, 

the electrical contractor during construction was engaged to make 

immediate temporary renafrs. Following subseauent inspections 

by departmental inspectors,permanent repairs to the service, and in 

various other areas of the building, were authorized. The work 

orders covered the temporary repairs and various star;es as work 

progressed. 

Heavy EquiPment School, Stephenville - $19,379 (4 work orders) 

Students and Instructors from the District 

Vocational School, Stephenville, undertook, as part of their trainin~ 

programme, to perform certain structural alterations-to provide 

additional classrooms and related services in this building. The 

department was requested to provide the necessary electrical 

and mechanical services. The work by the students and staff was 

done over a considerable 
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MR. ROUSSEAU period of . time, hence the separate work 

orders by the department. 

The Lemarchant Building - $34,284 (3 wor~ers) 

This was in fact three separate projects 

undertaken at different times in the same building to accommodate 

three separate divisions of government. The first, electrical 

services and additional electrical facilities for the Chief 

Electoral Officer who was relocated from the Colonial Buildi ng; 

secondly, renovations to provide accommodations for the Department 

of Public Works and Services stockroom, relocated from the 

Confederation Building; and thirdly, improvements and alterations 

to the Department of Transportation and Communications facilities 

already located in the building. 

Buildi!!S__!_!?.Q,..]'_l~~a_l!_t_yill~--:...~£3..,J!.~~JP~E!ls-~r.4.~~~? 

This is the main highways depot at 

Pleasantville. During this period the department installed a 

mezzanine .flo.or .and prov.ided office accommodation to relocate a 

section of the engineering division from the Confederation Building. 

Structural work was performed over a period of time by our own 

forces. Electrical and mechanical work was performed by outside 

contractors. The extent and scope of the work could only be 

determined as the structural work progressed and work orders were 

issued for each phase. 

Prison Camp - $15,994 (3 work orders) 

This covered three separate projects. 

First, the installation of outlets and repairs to wiring_ in the 

barn; two installation of laundry equipment and additional outlets 

in recreation room in inmates' quarters; and thirdly, renovations 

to the basement area to provide additional sleeping accommodations 

for inmates. 

Exon House- $16,747- (3 work orders) 

Ceilings and walls were replaced in 

several areas of the building, again using our own carpentry forces. 

The resulting changes in the electrical system were performed by an 

out&lde contractor to whom orders were issued for the various 
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MR. ROUSSEAU: sections of the work as required. Because 

of the function of this institution the work could only be done in 

stages, in various areas and at selected times, hence the separate 

work orders. 

King George V Institute - $24,579 (6 work orders) 

This is an excellent example of one of 

our older buildings in which it is almost impossible to determine 

the extent of electrical and mechanical work required to complete 

renovations once they are started. The work was spread over a 

period of time, under the supervision of our departmental 

electrical inspector,and work orders were issued to cover the various 

phases as work progressed. 

The Auditor Generals concern regarding late 

issuance of formal work orders and delay in certification of 

invoices is certainly shared by the department. Work orders issued 

after work is performed are, because of the nature of the work 

involved, often unavoidable, even under the best conditions. The 

workload during ~his particular period, combined with limited staff, 

tends to aggravate the problem. I am equally concerned and every 

effort is being made to ensure that such instances in future are 

kept to an absolute minimum. Invoices can only be certified for 

payment after they are received and checked. Contractors sometimes, 

for various reasons, delay forwarding invoices; for example, some 

minor component is in short supply and the job cannot be fully 

completed. In other instances the inspector, be.cause he is not fully 

satisfied with the job,may delay certification pending remedial 

action by the contractor. 

It was the practice for many years for the 

inspector responsible to alone sign work orders. I think reference 

was made to that in the Auditor General's r-eport, The directive that 

all work orders must be countersigned dates from December 3, 1975, 

and while there may have been a few instances since then when orders 

may have inadvertently not been countersigned, every effort has been 

made by all staff to comply with this Directive. 
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MR. ROUSSEAU: 

Lack of Documentation of the receipt of goods and services, Section 97. 

My department is always conscious of the 

need for control over expenditure and documentatio~ relating to 

the receipt of goods and services,and a continuing effort is 

being Made compatible with out resources and staf£ to provi4e this 

control as adequately as possible. On July 16, 1976, new procedures 

were initiated for the documentation and recording of goods and 

servic.es which appear to functioning satisfactorily. 

There is another one on page 19 wh·ic.h 

Makes separate reference to my department., Section 23, and it is 

unfortunate that the Auditor General - I think he sent a note -

tram the St, John's Housing Authority which should read, I think 

AN RON. MEMBER: The St. John' s Housing Corporation. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: The St, John's Housing Corporation, yes. 

In 1970 the government agreed to sell 

155 acres of land to the St. John's Housing Corporation. The 

~l!!litettt'·~.a'Pf!l!'!f'tetl: ''tilat·~)'lltetlt ··wotua·~be 'matte .. lifter the blir:td:Lng 

lots were developed and sold. Subsequently, in accordance with 

Order-in-council 
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MR. ROUSSEAU: 419-'75, 17.23 acres were returned to this 

departmePt on the basis of a proportionate credit to the 

original agreement plus an appropriate amount to cover certain 

improvments undertaken and paid for by the Corporation. On 

October 28,1976, the department wrote the .St. John's Housing 

Corporation requesting payment of the outstanding balance of 

$272,300. It is anticipated that this will be received before 

the end of the present fiscal year. 

The Auditor General's comment that no attempt had been made 

to collect the balance of the $350,000 is, I suggest, not a 

fair statement, in that my officials were fully a~•are that 

paynent was not receiva~le until the lots were sold and this, 

I understand, is onlv now in its final stages. 

Gentlemen,on page 9 I have listed 16 or so companies that 

the business of government is carried on ~•ith in this,and that 

the amounts qf these comnanies vary from small amounts to 

larger amounts. Company (A) is A.B. Halsh, company (ll) is 

Noel Electric and company (C) is Noel Hechanical. 

~1R. "EARY: I was right on target. 

NR. SPEAKER: Hon. member for llur1!eo-!lay D'Espoir. 

MR. SIMI'ONS: Thank you , Mr. Speaker, let me begin my 

·· response to the minister's statement by thanking him for 

making the statement • It is some time since '~e first asked these 

questions and about a month since the Auditor C:eneral tabled 

his report and made it availa~le to the House. Hmvever ~if the 

minister can be judged by his ·colleague he . is well ahead of the 

game,and my fi~st comment , Mr. !'peaker,,;rould be one to his 

colleagues to follow his examole. 

The minister , I believe, is the first minister to reply 

fairly fully , whether adequately is a question ~•e will come 

to, hut fairly fully to the various paragraphs in the Auditor 

General's ~eport about which the Auditor r.eneral has raised 
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MR. SIMMONS: questions or reported findings or made recommendations. 

And in that respect I particularly thank him for being apparently 

fairly comprehensive. He'has had the benefit of studying the 

statement,! have not,! have just heard it now for the first 

time~and I ~.rant some time to have a look at it. I do not 

think it would be fair to either him or to the House or his 

department,which has obviously done the work on this statement, 

to hastily comment on the substance of the statement except in 

one or two respects that do not particularly re~uire a perusal 

of the details and I should do that ri~ht now. 

The statement does attempt to answer a number of auestions 

that were raised by me and by my colleague from Fortune-Hermitage~ 

who is the opposition spokesman for Public Works and Services. 

Whether or not the statement answers them satisfactorily,or 

answers the criticisms of the Auditor General satisfactorily, 

remains to be seen. Hr. Speaker, as chairman of the Public 

Accounts Committee I will have the opportunity along with my 

colleagues in committee to oeruse this statement, to scrutinize 

it fairly carefullY both in committee and subseouentlv in 

the House will have opportunities to not only comment further 

on it but to raise any further auestion that might be required or 

we might think rnav be necessary having perused the statement 

In view of tha~ , Mr. Speaker, I believe it is ft sufficient 

to thank the minister for his statement and to give him notice 

that if the statement raises more questions that it answers 

he can expect us to be back with those auestions. 

SO}ffi HON. MEMBERS: Rear, hear! 

0 0 0 

MR. NOLAN: Could I revert to petitions, ~!r. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: Does the han. gentleman have leave to revert 

~o. petitions? Agreed. The bon~ member for Conception Rav South. 

PRESENTING PETITIONS: 
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KR. ~lOLA.~ : Yes, This pe_tition . that I would like to present 

to the Rouse,, table for the House, is concerning the Departmert 

of Transportat ion and Communications. I did not have an 

opportunity to chat with the minister about it earlier 'but I have 

written him on this matter and I am sure I will no doubt be 

getting a reply and so on in short order. It concerns a 

group of people, ~~r. Speaker, 

2439 



March 10, 1977 Tape 886 IB-1 

MR. NOLAN: 

about twenty-eight people have signed this,and· it refers to a well 

at St. Phillips. Now the well was destroyed,according to the prayer 

of the petition,by the Department of Trans~ortation during road 

construction done on Churc3~~d in St. Phillips. And they apparently, 

the residents there, have been in contact with several people 

concerning this matter and they have not been able to get any 

satisfaction at all. And they are now outlining through this petition 

the situation regarding the problem that they have. Apparently two 

years ago the Department of Transportation and Communications upgrnded 

and paved the Church Road. In the years preceding this construction 

the residents there had a good well both in ~linter and in Summer. The 

well had never gone dry at any time and soon after the new paving "'as 

completed the well went dry. Now this never happened before. And 

since that time they have now surface water in the Winter and they 

have to carry water ~rom neighbors during the Summer to supply thejr 

~eeds. "That is some subst~ntjal di.stancc. 

"We feel"; they say, "that this is not just", and t,,ho can disagree 

with them. 

Y:P.. ROBERTS: Hear, hear! 

MR. NOLAN: And they ask nov that we rlo tvhat we can here in this 

House to see if we cannot do somethine now about this matter so that 

they will not be faced again this Summer with the situation that 

they do not relish~and nor "'ould any of us incic'entally if tve •A~ere 

in the same position, the thought of having·to bother neighbours and 

having to take from their water supply •rhich often times is lor> 

· anyway. So I would appreciate it very much if the minister concerned 

would have his officials look into this matter. As I said I have 

already written him on it just today. And I table this now in the 

hope that it will receive the support of the House and I would think 

the ¥inister of Transportation and Cornmunications,since I know -

I mean,no one attempts to, for example,criticize him for doing some 

upgrading and paving on Church Road in St. Phillips, certainly not. 

But the fact is that certain things have happened which I have attempted 
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}~. NOLAN: 

to outline here and it is fe-r this reason, 1~r. Speaker, that I bring 

this petition before the House at this time and ask that I be 

permitted to table it and have it referreo to the Department to 

Which it relates. 

:1-'R.. SPEAKER: The hon. member f~r LaPoile. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, I support the petition so ably presented 

by my hon. friend, the member for Conception Bay South (Mr. Nolan) on 

behalf of twenty-eight of his constituents ~~o live on Church Road in 

St. Phillips. Mr. Speaker, it would seem to be from the prayer of 

the petition,and from ~~at the hon. gentleman said in presenting the 

petition,that the people living along that road, Sir, who lost their 

water supply would have recourse to take legal action against the 

Department of Transportation ano Communications. I believe, Sir, that 

the department,if tbey . .re 1noeeo- if it can be proven that they are 

responsible for taking at~ay that drinking t~ater that these people were 

using there, that the minister's department has no choice but to put 

an artesian ~1ell back there so that these people can get some drinking 

~mter. 

I do not knov: if the minister has had an opportunity to look into 

the legal aspects of this, but from what the member said it certainly 

would seem to me that the Department of Transportation and r.ommunications 

have a legal obligation to replace that water supply, I would like to 

hear the minister's comments. So, Sir, it gives me pleasure to 

support the prayer of the petition. 

~!!!.. SPEAKE'R: The hon. Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. ROBERTS: I would like to say just a word or two in support of 

the petition. I think the arguments have been well put forth by 

my friend and colleague from Conception Bay South (~!r. Nolan), and 

I think the gentleman for LRPoile (}!r. Neary) has , as ah'ays, added 

to the discussion. All I want to say is that I think the request is 

a very reasonable one. I live quite near St. Phillips. My family 

and I live a mile or ttro up the road in the local improvement district 

of Hogan's Pond which I gather if the }!inister of ~!unicipal Affairs has 
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MR. ltOBERTS: 

his way and wisdom does not prevail will shortly become part of the 

new large community o:f St. Thomas-St. Phillips-Hogan's Pond. 

_ (R. D!NN: We will allow the people to decide that. 

MR. ROBERTS: Well I am very grateful indeed. I think if t;he minister 

allows the people to decide that, that is the right and proper course. 

But in any event that is a little away from the petition,as interesting 

as the point is. I think the request is a reasonable one, Sir. These 

people would like a well dug. A lot of people would like wells dug and 

there ha~e been a lot of wells dug. There have been a nwnber dug iti 

my district, Sir, and I hope that shortly the government will even see 

fit to put p.umps in on the111. They have spent the $10,000 or $15,000 

on each of a nwnber of wells and have not spent the $500 or $1,000 

to put the pumps there. 

MR. NEARY: Is that the 'Maynard wells? 
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Mr. Roberts. 

Yes, these are the Maynard wells, but that is not the gentleman 

from St. Barbe South, Sir. It is his good wife, a gracious lady, 

who engaged in a democratic exercise a year and one-half ago. 

But be that as it may,the wells are there, and we are delighted 

to have the wells. All we want is the pump to get the water out 

of the 200 or 300 foot deep well. . But these people, Sir, 

in my friend's district~had a water supply until the actions of 

the government directly took away their water supply. Nobody intended 

to do that. I am sure that my friend and jousting mate from 

Bonavista South, the Minister of Transportation and Communications, 

had no thought that that would be the result of laying pavement 

on the Church Road, but it was the result obviously. I think there 

is a clear case here of cause and effect, and I think since the 

government caused it, it is up to the government to remedy the 

problem, and the obvious remedy as the petition requests is to 

have .a new well drilled. 

So I would hope that the gentleman from Pleasantville 

(Mr. Dinn), the Minister of Municipal Affairs~will arrange to have 

the necessary well drilled this year. I think these people deserve 

it, Sir, and I think it is an entirely reasonable request and one 

which.should be granted. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for Burgee- Bay d'Espoir. 

MR. SIMMONS: Mr. Speaker, I would like to support the petition 

presented by my colleague from Conception Bay South (Mr. Nolan). It 

raises an issue which is a fairly common one. 

CAPT. WINSOR: It is not an isolated issue. 

MR. SIMMONS: As my hon. colleague from Fogo has so well pointed 

out, it is not at all an isolated issue. It is an issue that creates 

problems in many areas of the Province, and I rise not only to support 

the motion to the petition but also to draw attention to a possible 

solution to it, Mr. Speaker. A fair amount of time the problem is created 
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Mr. Simmons. 

because o£ either a lack of actual co-ordination between the 

Department of Transportation engineering people and the local 

authorities, either a lack of co-ordination or a lack of 

communication, a lack of articulation as to who is responsible 

for the problem. And often in some of the smaller communities, 

with the volunteer councils and no full-time staff, it is very 

difficult for the aggrieved person-the person with the well 

which has got salt in it because of road construction - it is 

very difficult for that person to know who to talk to. And 

I had an example only in the last month or so which I referred 

to the Assistant Deputy Minister of Transportation, and he checked 

it out for me, and he was able to produce documentation to the 

effect that it was not the department's problem, this particular 

case, but the responsibility of the municipality involved. Here 

was this lady who had talked to me about the matter, living literally 

feet from the town cle1:k in tha.t petX".I;:tcular .mQnicipality, and was 

of the impress~on that it was the responsibility of the department 

and was, therefore, saying the appropriate things about the department 

over the past two or three years. I just use that as an example, 

Mr. Speaker, to point up the need for the department having done 

its very necessary work, engineering and so on, to get roads, to 

change road routes or to acquire extra - what is the \rord I am looking 

for? - right of way and so on, having done these things to make 

sure that the follow-up is done in terms of making it crystal clear 

to the landowner, to the resident, to the municipality1 just whose 

~esponsibility the consequences may be. That would remove a fair 

amount of the aggravation which results in this kind of problem. 

I hope in making that particular point I have not 

subtracted at all from the overall worthiness of the petition 

by my colleague from Conception Bay South (Mr. Nolan). I heartily 

endorse it and just reiterate that it is a problem affecting a lot of 

Z444 

1.. 



March 10, 1977 Tape n.o. 887 Page 3 - row 

Mr . Sillll!lons, 

people. And the ~linister of Transportation, in particular, would 

do well, and the ~li'(lister of }!unicipal Affairs would both do well 

to have a look at it with a view not to spending l &rge sums of 

money necessarily, but a view to a·rticulating the problem, and 

rationalizing the problem somewhat to the satisfaction of all 

concerned. 

SOME HON, HEHBERS : Hear, hear! 
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ANSWERS TO QUESTIONS FOR WHICH NOTICE HAS BEEN GIVEN 

MR. SPEAKER: The bon. Minister of Education. 

MR. W. HOUSE: Mr. Speaker, I would like to table the answers 

to Question :·los. 119, 120, and 121 appearing on the Order Paper - -
of February 17 asked by the hon. member from LaPoile (Mr. Neary). 

Question 119 is regarding the facilities for the teaching of 

French on the French island of St. Pierre and Miquelon. 

Question 120 is regarding the disposition of houses formerly 

owned by Memorial University. And Question 121 is a question 

regarding the operation of the Harlow Campus. 

ORAL QUESTIONS 

MR. SPEAKER: The bon. Leader of the Opposition. 

MR. E. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, obviously, Sir, the government 

have been so seriously delinquent in giving information , and 

all of my colleagues have questions. Mine, Sir, is an important 

matter which T would like to ask of the jovial gentleman from 

Bonavista S.outh (Mr. Morgan)., my :f:r>iend, ·my -soul mate, tile 

Minister of Transportation and Communications, Sir, and it has 

to do with the ferry service between the community of St. Barbe 

in my district,and the Labrador side of the Straits of Belle Isle, 

the ferry actually as we know goes to Blanc Sablon in the 

Province of Quebec. Could the minister tell the House, please, 

Sir, what steps either he or his officials have taken with a 

view to ensuring that a new ferry is made available on that 

route this year? And by way o~ ·explanation, Sir, there has 

been a ferry service as the House knows for a number of years, 

.but the contract under which that service was operated has expired 

and there are some efforts being made by two groups to get a 

contract from the Government of Canada with respect to a new 

"ferry" and I would like to know what efforts the minister has made 

with respect to that, Sir? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Minister of Transportation. 

MR. J. MORGAN: Mr. Speaker, the ferry service across the 

Straits from the St. Barbe Coast to Blanc Sablon, it is really in 

2446 



March 10, 1977 Tape 888 PK - 2 

Mr. Morgan: 

the Labrador portion of our Province, that ferry service has 

bee~ felt by the Department of Transportation, provincially,as 

being ' , inadequate for quite some time. Last year in 1976 

my first attempt to get some improvements were with the 

Canadian Transportation Commission. I sat down and met with 

Mr. Allan Campbell~the Chairman of the Water Transport Committee 

of the Canadian Transportation Commission. Mr. Campbell was 

very sympathetic and responded favourably to the request from 

the Provincial level. However,he clearly indicated in order to 

improve the service there had to be an increase of subsidization 

because the larger boat would cost more to operate and therefore 

the CTC would have to seek additional funds from the Ministry 

of Transport to improve that ferry service. 

The most recent correspondence between the department 

and the Federal level of government because the Water Transport 

Directorate now appointed in the Ministry of Transport, 

Mr. Harsham, not Marchand, but Harsham, and he is responsible for 

co-ordinating the operations of these type of ferry services. 

And we again have repeated the urgency of having a larger vessel 

established in that service to improve the service It is now 

up to the CTC and the Ministry of Transport whether or not they 

approve from the budgeted level of the Federal level of government, 

additional funds to enable the increased subsidization of a 

larger boat. It is outside of our jurisdiction, it is strictly 

the Federal level of gove~e~t,but we have made considerable 

representation over the past number of months, and we are of the 

opinion in recent correspondence that the Federal level of 

government will be increasing their subsidization. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear: 

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, a supplementary. 

MR. SPEAKER: A supplementary. 

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, I thank the bon. gentleman for his 

information. Could he tell us, Sir, whether the Government of the 
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Mr. Roberts: 

Province have offered any degree of financial assistance at all 

with respect t;c;> the increased subsi.dization, and as the minister 

I would think is probably aware, we are talking of an increase 

of 100 per cent from. about a quarter of a million dollars a 

year subs:l.dy on the former service to about a half million dollars 

a year, I am told,in respect of each of the two b:l.ds which 

have now been submitted? 

MR. SPEAKER: 

MR. MORG.l!N: 

The hon. Minister of Transportation wd COIIIlllunication.s. 

No, Mr. Speaker, the answer to that 

Z448 

1 



March 10, 1977 Tape No. 889 NM- 1 

MR. MORGAN: question is no. That ferry service is one of 

seven that we have in the Province. It is a bit different 

from the other six,because it can be considered as an inter­

provincial ferry service between provinces. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: What are the other.six? 

MR. MORGAN: The other six are the ferry services to 

Greenspond, to St. Brendan's, Fogo Island, Change Islands, 

Long Island, and Bell Island. These are the six ferry 

sertfces. 

These ferry services are subsidized 

by the federal government through the funds being allocated 

from the Ministery of Transport to the CTC, and the CTC 

approving the budget of each of the operators of these ferries. 

These serVices have been ~intained and subsidized since 

Confederation and in~fact in 1973 the seventh one, I call it 

the seventh ferry service, was initiated to Long Island. And 

that was also subsidized by the federal level of government. 

So all seven are in our view the responsibility 

of the federal government and at this time we have no intention 

of placing any funds ~vith regards to allocation first of all for 

subsidization of the operations in current accotmt 1-Jr with 

regards to allocat~on of funds for canital account for the 

construction of facilities. 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. member for Lewisporte, follo1ved by 

the hon. gentleman from LaPoile. 

MR. WHITE: Mr. Speaker, I have a series of questions for 

the Minister of Transportation and Communications and it relates 

to the use of government aircraft. 

MR. ROBERTS: Hear! Hear! 

MR. WHITE: Mr. Speaker, I wonder if the minister could tell 

the House if there is only one company that the government deals 

with in terms of chartering helicopters in particular around the 
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MR. WHITE: Province and if so, tied in with that same thing, 

tied in with the same question, who has the authority to 

take a helicopter, or to hire a helicopter? Is there on~ ·---specific person or a number of persons or all ministers, 

or what is the situation? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Minister of Transportation and Communications. 

MR. MORGAN: ~{r. Speaker, the Air Services Division of 

the Deuartment of Transportation and Communications has a contract 

with the company Universal Helicouters, and that company supplies 

in the Summertime, in fact now all year round, seven helicopters. 

Three of them in the Summertime are used almost exclusively for 

a fire fighting measure with the Department of Forestry and 

Agriculture. 

The helicopters and the use of them, any 

official of government, any department would have to obtain 

permission from his respective minister. And of course each 

and every-minister has the authority to use these helicopters. 

l>!ith regards to the other aspect of the air services, that is 

our King Air aircraft, every Minister of the Crown can use the 

aircraft and over and above that we also give permission to the 

Leader of th~ Onnosition to use the aircraft as well, and he 

uses it quite often. And it is clearly nointed out in our policy, 

in the operations of air services, the government aircraft, when 

used,other than for emergency air lifts, etc., that these 

trips are to be on official government business and in fact all 

cases, if the logs are kept by the Director of Air Services, 

and these logs are forwarded to me, the minister responsible. 

If on occasions a helicopter is requested 

by an official of a department,and the minister of that department 

cannot be located for some reason, he could be away from the 

Province, or the Acting Minister, the minister responsible for air 

service, in this case myself, can authorize the use of a helicopter. 

MR. WHITE: A supplementary. 

!offi.. SPF' . .A'KER: A supplementary. 
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MR. ~~ITE: Mr. Speaker, a supplemefttary question to the minister . 

with respect to this, I wonder if the minister could tell me 

whether or not .:there are any terms of reference for the 

use of hel~ters by ministers in respect of the use of 
( 

helicopters only when there is no ?ther public means of transportation 

available~ I just wanted to give an example to determine from 

the minister whether he considers the Minister of Social Services 

taking a helicopter to Grand Falls to do an open line show, 

if that is the kind of priority or is there some list of 

rules and regulations~ 

MR.. SPEAKER: The bon. Minister of Transportation a~d Communications. 

MR. MORGAN: Mr. Speaker, notthere is no set guideline; each 

and every minister of this administration acts in a totally 

responsible way and when they use the helicopter they sign for 

the authorization and the use of these means of transport and I 

am of the impression, as the minister responsible - there has never 

been a case put forward to me that the miniR~Ar is not using 

vehicles for purnoses other than official government business. 

If my colleague went to Grand Falls I am 

sure he went there on official government business and he had 

every authority to use the helicopter. 

J{R. WHITE: A supplementary, Hr.SJ"eaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: A supJ"lementary. 
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~. SPEAKER: A supplementary: 

MR. WHITE: Hr. Speaker, I ~lander if the minister could tell the 

House whether or not he is prepared to table the logs of government 

travel in respect of government aircraft and to -

MR. ROBERTS: I ,.,j_ll table all mine 'ldth respect to helicopters • 

.J1R. miiTE: The Leader of the Opposition says he 'lrrll let the House 

know all the travelling he has done on helicopters. Because, ~r. 

Speaker, I would like to find out,and I am sure members of the House 

would like to find out, you kno'l·l, whether priority is being used in 

respect of government aircraft. And tied in with this question, ~'r. 

Speaker, I would like for the minister to tell me 'l·lhether or not 

officials of h:l.s department have to go directly to a minister or Phether 

or not they can use the aircraft on their own, the helicopters on 

their own? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. H:l.nister of Transportation and Communications. 

MR. HORGAN: :Hr. Speaker, the latter part of the question was ans"'ered 

earlier. I indicated that officials cannot use the aircraft without 

the authority or authorization, nul!'ber one, from their O'l·m respective 

ministers.and if they are unava:llabl~ fro~ the minister responsible 

for air services. If I recall correctly, Jcr. Sreaker, also there is 

a question now on the Order Paper asking for the same information and 

that· information will be tabled -in the House of Assembly in due t jJne. 

MR. h'HITE: f'r. Speaker -

}~, . SPEAKEr: Is this a supplementary? 

}IR, t-II!ITE: No.I just wanted to give notice that I am dissatisfiecl 

'ldth the answer and '1\lish to debate it on the J.ate Sho~1. 

:t-ID.. SPEAKER: 

MR. ROBERTS: 

l!R. SPEAKER: 

supplementary. 

}lR. ROBF.l'TS: 

Right, 

I have a supplementary. 

I recognize the han. Leader of the Opposition for a 

I will only be a second. It is a supplell'entary to 

the ~in:lster of Transportation ">ho is in a forthcoming Tl'ood. Would 

he get for the House, Sir, the information as to exactly how much 

it costs to take the Minister of Social Services from Gander to 

Grand Falls to do an open line show? It would be at least two hours, 

I would guess,of air time at $250 an hour which is $500. Could 
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:HR. ROBEFTS: 

the minister check that figure? Perhaps I am.wrong but could he 

let us know exactly What it costs the government to take the Minister 

of Social Se-rvices from Gander to Grand Falls and back for the open 

line show? 

MR.. SPEAKER: 

HR. MORGAN: 

The bon. Minister of Transportation and Communications. 

~fr. Speaker, I can supply the cost of the use of our 

aircraft, our King Air aircraft from any point in the Province,for 

example,where we have airstrips and landing strips. 

AN HON. ME!-ffiEP: Helicopter. 

~tR. MORGAN: Or helicopters and the cost per hour of these helicopters. 

But I take exception to the statement made by the hon. Leader of 

the Opposition. I am not going to supply information with regards to 

the particular cost of my colleague, the Minister of Social Services. 

If he went to Gander or Grand Falls on official business, if the 

hon. gentleman wants to an~ver that question it is up to him. But 

I will supply information with regards to the exact costs of flying 

from St. John's to Gander, St. John's to Stephenville, St . John's to 

Deer Lake or in fact any of the airstrips around the Province. 

MR. ROBERTS: 

~. SPEAKER: 

llr. Speaker, a very brief supplementary. 

I wjll permit one additional supplementary before 

going on to another hon. member. 

~m. ROBEP.TS: I thank the min:l.ster and if he '~->'ould let us have the 

information, Sir, the cost of the King Air, and also the cost of the 

helicopters which are under charter,the cost per hour to operate them, 

and then we could compute the distances. But if he wants to give 

St. John's to St. Anthony I would be delighted at that too, Sir, 

and including the fishing trips that I did not make but others 

made. 

HR. SPEAKER: 

_MR. NEARY: 

The hon. member for LaPoile. 

I would like to direct a question to the ~!inister of 

Finance, 'Sir, in connection with the 

p. LllNDRICAN: - a real brain. 

~. NEARY: Is the Minister of Industrial Development ready to just 
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sit back now~ 

MR. LUNDRIGA.~: I am sorry. 

Tape 890 IB-3 

_MR. NEARY: Hr. Speaker, I ~vould like to ask the Minister of Finance, 

Sir, a question in connection with the negotiations with the Dennison 

Mines Group, the Roman Group, you know, that are negotiating in 

connection with the oil refinery. As these people are mainly mining 

people and uranium prospectors, would the minister tell the House how 

these company propose to manage the oil refinery in the event that they 

should take it over? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon . Minister of Finance. 

MR. DOODY: That is a rather interesting question. The Dennison 

Group is indeed a mining corporation. The Roman Corporation,which is 

the controlling corporation,are a corporate entity, a conglomerate 

with interests in many areas. There is no doubt in my mind at all that 

they would be capable of finding the expertise to run an oil refinery 

if they ~vere fortunate enough to be able to put together a packare to 

make it happen. I sincerely hope that that indeed comes to pass. I 

have absolutely no doubt at all that Vr. P,oman and his number two 

man, !~r. Chapin, are quite capable of assembling all the expertise 

and all the companies that are necessary. ~fuether they can put the 

package together remains to be seen. As to whether they can get a 

company ~:rho are capable of running the refinery I think that that 

goes without saying. They can certainly manage that. 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. SPEAKER: 

A supplementary question, Yr. Speaker. 

A supplementary. 
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MR. NEARY: Would the minister indicate to the House if the 

minister has any knowledge that the Roman group·or the Denninson Mining 

Company have indeed entered into an agreement or signed a contract 

1 
with any company to manage the oil refinery at Come By Chance1 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. minister. 

MR. NEARY: The hon. member should not get the Denninson t1ining thin~t 

confused with the Roman Corporation. He should try for his own 

edification and for the information of the House to not get the 

two confused. This is not a mining operation. This is an oil 

refinery. At this point in time it is strictly from a financial 

point of view, and as I have said they are in conversations with and in 

negotiation with a group of people who are familiar with marketing 

and transportation of product, and in operation and in all the other 

areas of expertise that are necessary to operate a refinery. As to 

whether they have a signed agreement with any group, my only knowledge 

is that they have a commitment from the Universal Oil Products, UOP, 

tn do·,a ···study "Or ·a :survey ·: of cthe refinery at Come By Chancre. To the 

best of my knowledge there are no other signed commitments or 

documentations. 

MR. NEARY: A supplementary question, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: A supplementary. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Are these the same people who botched the 

UOP, the same outfit? 

MR. DOODY: Yes. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: They botched the building of it. tlhat a botch! 

MR. NEARY: Mr. · Speaker, would the minister 

MR. DOODY: Wait now • 

MR. NEARY: That is all right. I am getting him on public record. 

The hon. former Prcrmier knows what I am doing. 
MR. DOODY: Does he? 
MR. NEARY: Would the minister indicate to the House whether these 

people,who the Ro~n Group are talking to about managing the refinery) 

would they be German or French companies? 

of the oil refinery, would they be putting 

at Come By Chance, the managers? 
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MR. SPEAKER: The hon. minister. 

MR. DOODY: So far as I have said, Sir, the Roman Group, the 

Roman Corporation have entered into discussions and negotiations 

with various people who are capable and com~etent and efficient 

and have considerable resources and experiences behind them. 

They have not entered into any agreements with any of them. And 

so it would be not only premature it would just be pointless 

to discuss the possibilities or probabilities of whether or not 

they are of Greek, German, French, Italian or indeed any other 

nationality. It is pointless. There is no agreement entered into. 

There is no concrete proposal, and there are no articles signed. 

MR. NOLAN: Mr. Speaker -

MR. SPEAKER: The bon. member for Conception Bay South 

followed by the hon. member for Terra Nova. 

MR. NOLAN: Mr. Speaker, a question for the Minister of Finance 

and President of Treasury Board. If he would be good enough now to 

give us some indication of what the current situation is regarding 

the strike at the Mental ~ospital, particularly in view of news reports 

today concerning that matter? 

MR. SPEAKER: The bon. minister. 

MR. DOODY: Mr. Speaker, I am not familiar with the news reports 

to which the gentleman is referring. I also prefer to refer to the 

hospital as the lvaterford Hospital which is, I think, the official 

name. The negotiations are open. A meeting was held yesterday 

between management, represented by Treasury Board, and the 

administration and the department. The meeting did not take verv 

long. I understand that the union was not particularly impressed 

bv government's latest offer,which I think is the second or third 

proposal that has been made which falls far short of what union had 

hoped and had expected to get. And my understanding was that the 

union had taken the proposal back to consider, and you know, that is 

where the situation stands right now. 
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MR. NOLAN: A supplementary. 

MR.. SPE,AKER: A supplementarv by the original questioner. 

MR. NOLAN~ A supplementary for the Minister of Finance. 

Could the minister now tell us if he is aware as to whether or 

not ther~~~uest for additional police to go to that 
- ------ -· 

institution this morning? If so, for what reason, and what 

caused it? 

MR. DOODY: I can only suggest, Sir, that if the polic were 

called in, there must have been something unlawful occurred. 

It is not unusual for the police to be called in when some 

act of lawlessness takes place,or some suspect·ed act of 

lawlessness t .akes place. Whether that indeed happened is 

something with which I am not familiar, but I am delighted to know 

that the police are available in the event of such an emergency, 

if indeed such an emergency occurred. 

MR. NOLAN: A supplementary, Mr. Speaker. 

MR. SPEAKER: A supplementary by the original questioner. 

MR. NOLAN: Just two questions for the minister, if I may, 

rather than -
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MR. NOLAN: a question in two parts, Mr. Spe·aker. One is -

MR. DOODY: One part and then notice of a supplementary. 

MR. NOLAN: One is, again a question similar to what I asked 

the other day, is there anything that the minister now 

sees he can do to bring what is developing into a very touchy 

situation to an end 1 one way or the other, legally of course~ 

And is he also aware that one gentleman has now threatened and 

·~---------------in fact has gone on a hunger strike until the thing is~nded, 

a citizen of the city I understand? 

MR. SPEAKER: The han. Minister of Finance. 

MR. DOODY: You know~the representatives of management on this 

side, Trea~ury Board, the administration, the department, have 

presented government's case to the local. On three occasions 

we have brought forth overtures. They have all been re_iected. nr 

at least the last one to the best of my knowledge has not been 

rejected,although it has been indicated that the union has not 

ac~epted 'it, at least it has not been very happy with it. 

It is certainly not, and I would not want 

to mislead the House or try to mislead the public, it is certainlv 

not what the union has stated as their original and first objective 

and that is the Warders' Pension Plan. It is a second or third 

move un in the existing nension olan. 

Government, it aonears to me, has m2de so 

many conciliatory moves in this direction that it is becoming 

you kno•.r to a point where we are being nlaced in a position 

where we really do not know what to do next. We get.the union 

peonle in,and they come readily enough,thank heavens,and they 

are willing to sit down and talk,and we talk and ,.,,e make 

a proposal and ~e ~ive it to them,and they go off and then 

their response has been up-to-date a negative one. That we 

find most unfortunate. We are most anxious to get this 

thing settled. We want to get it settled as quickly as we 

can on the most conciliatory basis possible. Our first objective 
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MR. DOODY: and our prime responsibility of course is to the 

health and safety of the patients that are in there. We 

are trying to attain that objective and at the same time 

be fair and reasonable with the employees of the institution. 

As for some gentlema~ or lady, I do not know which, who has gone 

on a hunger strike, that is completely beyond - Who? 

MR. NOLAN: 

MR. DOODY: 

MR. NEARY: 

Dr. Bhat.tacharya. 

Dr. Bhattacharya is gone on a hunger strike? Well. 

He said he would rather die.of hunger than have 

his patients go down and die of a heart seizure. 

MR. DOODY: Well Dr. Bhattacharya,you know, with great respect 

to the gentleman,wants to make a choice in that direction, that 

is obviously one of the freedoms of democracy. I personally 

would not prefer to be involved in the situation or I would have 

to make -

MR. NEARY: 

cut down too. 

MR. DOODY: 

overwei~tht? 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. DOODY: 

Some of us in this House who are overweight should 

Are you suggesting that the han. gentleman is 

Some of us are a little bit overweight. 

Yes, there are some of us who are a little bit 

overweight.but the hon. member for LaPoile can correct that 

condition if he keeps up his road runnin~ practices. 

MR. NEARY: 

MR. DOODY: 

ThP Minister of Justice and myself and -

All I am saying is that the doctor to l~hom 

you just referred by name, whom I did not, prefers to die 

of hunger than of heart attack, whatever it is, you know obviously 

that is certainly nothing that I can control. It is a choice 

that I do not want to make and certainly one that I do not want 

to be involved in. Every man has a right to attain his own 

ends and his own destiny in his o~ way and if that is the way 

the hon. gentleman wants to leave this earth then certainly 

there is very little that I can do to prevent it. 
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SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear! He~! 

MR. NEARY: A supplementary question. 

MR. SPEAKER: I will recognize one further supplementary. 

'rhe bon. member for Lafoile. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, I would like to ask the Minister 

of Finance if the negotiating committee on behalf of the 

government have put forward a proposal to the union negotiating 

committee to have the item of contention, the pension plan -
item, to have it set aside and made the sub.1ect of a third 

party arbitration, and go on and negotiate the other clauses 

of the agreement and have this matter of the pension plan 

straightened ·out one way or another through a third party 

arbitration which would be agreed on by both sides, the 

membershi~ of the arbitration board, and the chairman to be 

picked by the two members~ one would be selected by the government, 

and one by the union. Now bas the minister put that proPosition 

The bon. Minister of Finance. 

MR. DOODY: I am still di11:esting the preamble, Sir, and 

I am certainly going to try to i;!nswer the Question. The 

&nS'V'er, and I do not want to be facetious about this ~is that 
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MR. DOODY: binding arbitration has always been 

in my experience, and I think in the experience of most trade 

unionists, a sort of a last resort measure, something that 

nobody really wants to get involved in unless they absolutely 

have to. 

to get involved 

I think that government does not want 

when I say government in this case I mean 

management - does not want to get involved in binding 

arbitration unless it is absolutely necessary. The federal government 

got itself in a position with binding arbitrations some years ago 

and they have been living with it ever since and the rest of 

Canada has been living with it ever since. The inflationary 

spiral started from that process ever since,starting with the Seaway 

situation in which an arbitrator who had no responsibility for the 

bills that had to be paid made a decision which everybody in 

Canada has been paying for ever since, which eventually resulted 

in these rather unfortunate controls that we have in the Anti­

Inflation Board situation. It is the last thing in the world that 

we want- well, the second last thing in the world that we want 

to see here in government is a binding arbitration situation. 

If it comes to a position where we have 

to do that in order to ensure the safety of the patients at the 

Waterford, then certainly that is the course of action we will have 

to take. It is not one that we want to take and I would suggest, 

and I stand to be corrected on this, that it is also a course of action 

that the union does not want to take. I have yet to meet a 

trade unionist who favours binding arbitration. As to whether we 

want to set aside the pension question and discuss all the other 

items, I think we have made that quite clear from the beginning 

that, of course, we would be absolutely delighted to do. The union 

certainly does not want to do that and I certainly cannot blame 

them for not wanting to do that. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS : Hear, hear: 
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MR. SPEAKER: I have indicated that I would recognize 

the hon. the member for Terra Nova next. 

!o[R. LUSH: Mr. Speaker, I want to direct a question 

to the Minister of Tourism as a result of his statement yesterday 

respecting the cessation and __ ca,nc~llat:i._o_!l_o_f__ nego.t:iatians_w_i_t b __ 

the landowners at Sandr ingham r esul t ing in the golf course being 

now removed from the Eastport Peninsula. I wonder if the 

minister can inform the House why the government chose to 

negotiate with all 1~~2~~~s-~egardless of the amount of land ---
owned when I think, probably, the ownership of land ranged from 

less than an acre upwards to forty acres,and giving each land-

owner an equal vote? 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. the Minister of Tourism. 

MR. HICKEY: Mr. Speaker, I do not know of any other 

situation or any precedent for doing it in any other way. It is 

true that there were some people with small packages of land. It 

was something like 120 acres of private land that we were attempting 

to acquire which .was owned by twenty-four people ~eighteen of 

which were farmers,or at least eighteen of which were farming that 

land in one way or another. To give more than one vote,or to 

make a decision based purely on the fact that two people might 

own a large package of that land and disregard the others, I think 

we would be setting a very dangerous precedent and I do not think 

that really we would have gotten away with it if we had attempted 

that. 

As I said the other day, no one is more 

disappointed than I and my department that negotiations had to be 

called off. It is a fact of life that unless we were going to go 

to expropriation, which I certainly was not prepared to recommend 

to my colleagues, because a golf course going in an area and 

removing farmers would, in fact, be changing the lifestyle of 

those people, a whole new way of life for them, some of them in 

their late forties or early fifties. I am not sure that they 

would go back to the farming profession again or that kind of 

2462 



MaYch 10, 1977, Tape 893, Page 3 -- apb 

MR. HICKEY: occupation. There are a whole lot of 

ramifications, Mr. Speaker, in taking this kind of a decision. 

Certainly it is one that I was not prepared to take when I 

realized that the golf course could be realized in another area. 

Of course the 9ther thing is, it is almost like saying that 

we would take into account the views by the whole Eastport Peninsula , 

AN HON. MEMBER: Is that the view of the minister? 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. HICKEY: Either you want :lnformation or you do 

not. Y·ou cannot have it both -ways. 

MR. SPEAKER: Time has expired. 
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ORDERS OF THE DAY: 

Motion, ~he han. the Uinister of Consumer Affairs And Environment 

to introduce a bill, "An Act To Amend The Transactions 

Relief Act," carried. (Bill No. 30) 

On motion Bill No. 30 read a first time, ordered read a second 

time on tomorrow. 

Motion, the han. the Uinister of Manpower and Industrial Relations 

to introduce a bill, "An Act To Style The Department of Hanpal>'er And 

Industrial Relation Act As The Department of Labour And }fanpmver," 

carried. (Bill No. 31) ~ 
On motion Bill No. 31 read a first time~ordered read a second 

time on tomorrot-r. 

Motion, the han. the Uinister of Fisheries to introduce a bill, 

An Act To Amend The Fishing Industry Advisory Board Act , 1975," 

carried. (Bill No. 32) 

On motion Bill No. 32 read a first time, ordered read a second 

time on tomorrol>T. 

Motion, the han. the ~inister of Justice to introduce a bill, 

"An Act To Wind Up The Permanent ~farine Disasters Fund," carried. 

(Bill No. 33) 

On motion Bill No. 33 read a first time, ordered reao a second 

time.on tomorrow. 

}fotion, the han. the Minister of ~'anpm-1er and Industrial Relations 

to introduce a bill, "An Act To Provioe Uniform Hinimum Standards Of 

Conditions Of Employment In The Province, " carried. (Bill No. 34) 

On motion Bill No. 34 read a first time, ordered read a second 

Order 1, the adjourned debate on the amendment 

to the Address in Reply. 

The han. member for Stephenville. 

SO:!'E HON • }~r-!BEPS : Hear, hear! 

rm. HCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, before I start could you tell me how much 

time I have left in my speech? 

YR. SPEAKER: . The table will check it. 
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MR. MCNEIL: 

'1-!r. Speaker, as I stated yesterday,or Tues.clay,Newfoundland is 

among the richest within the Canadian Confederation in natural 

resources. But When it comes to harvesting these great resources for 

our Newfoundland people we are definitely the poorest. This is "'1hy 

I feel that Labrador Linerboard has to succeed. Newfoundland cannot 

end up end be known in the world as an industrial junk yard. If 

this PC government does not turn around Labrador Linerboard this is 

What will happen, it will add to the pages of failures we have in 

Newfoundland. 

But, Mr. Speaker, it does not stop there. The greatest resource is 

our people,and particularly the people in the Bay St. George area 

who are now being treated by the Moores PC Govern~ent as second class 

citizens. They are being blamed for the ills of the Labrador Linerboard. 

Mr. Speaker, the people of Stephenville might have a little part to 

play in some of the ills of Labrador Linerboard but, Hr. Speake~, 

they are not as great as What the Moores PC Government are responsible 

for. 

S0}1E RON. }1EW3E"PS: Hear, hear! 

MR. :t-'CNEIL: }'r. Speaker, the people of Stephenville did not enter 

into the sales contract Which now has proven to be a disaster. 

SOME RON. }~}~EPS: Fear, hear! 
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MR. McNEIL: The sales contract entered into by our government 

and if I may .1ust read a newspaper clipping w:hich states," In March 

1973 ,"Roberts questions firms ability to market Stephenville 

Linerboard" 

SOMF. HON • 'lF'HlERS : (Inaudible) 

~1R • McNEIL : "The opposition leader has questioned the ability 

of Rand Whitney Container Corporation of Worcester,~!assachusetts, 

through its subsidiary International Forest Products Limited 

to market the Labrador Linerboard product at the Stephenville mill, 

claiming the company has no experience in selling substantial 

amounts of the product. Mr. Robert's said information he had 

received from the wood's branch of the Department of Industrial 

Trade and Commerce in Ottawa indicates the American company has 

only $6 million a year in sales . "This is a small amount even 

to our Newfoundland standards!' He said that it appeared that 

the Internattonal ~crest Products was set up to market the 

Stephenville Linerboard products but it is not re~istered with the 

federal authories in Ottawa nor in };e,.;foundland. He claimed the 

parent company was not knot-m in the pulp and paper circles it1 

eitlJ.er Canada or the TJ. S. "We have a company which apparently has 

never been in the business before:• 

IIMr. Roberts t-7ent on to question the sales contract whicl,. 

has been agreed to by the government and Rand l'hitney for the sale 

of Labrador Lin~rhoard products. Mr. Roberts sug~ested a total 

sales based on a production figure of 35_0,000 tons per 

year with amount:> to $60.million. He said Rand 

Whitney had in effect a take or pay contract which requires 

him to sell $36. million or the $60. million. "What happens if they 

cannot sell it?" Mr. Roberts stated then that we would be stuck with it?" 

And that is exactly what happened, we are stuck t-7ith it. 

They guaranteed the sale of ~00 thousand tons of linerboard a 

year and what have they produced up to date, what have they done 
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MR. McNEIL: to date? Mr. Speaker, the sales contract was 

entered into by the government, on the sales contract the 

signature of our Premier and the then chairman of the board, 

Hr. Crosbie. It was not the people of Stephenville, so the 

people of ~· Stephenville cannot be blamed for the sales contract. 

Hr. Speaker, the only bright spot in the sales contract is 

that as of March 31st of this VP.-"1" it: ~vill come to an end. 

And hopefully the new group now being set up will be much more 

equipped and will do a better effort in selling our product. 

We are told by some of the sales people that went to Europe 

to sell our product that the reason why Labrador Linerboard 

cannot sell on the market is because the customers fear that 

Linerhoard will not be open in a year , and they are worried 

about the 1980's when the markets will be very ti~ht. So 

naturally they are go.1Jir ;'1:o 'gt' to the established customers 

rather than go to a mill which will probably fail in a vear. 

Hr. Speaker, .w:e .c.annat .let Labrador Linerboard fail, we 

as a province need industry-

Sm!E BON. HEl-ffiERS : Hear, hear' 

}!R, JlkNEIL: we need development. noing back to 1972-1973, 

it was consistently stated that the major problems of Labrador Liner~oard 

were its high wood costs. Hell mavhe so. But, ~fr. Speaker, tl,e 

mill '~as d~signed · and built to compete on the European market, net 

on the U. S. market. w·e cannot compete with the U. S. in sales. 

We are told that the U. S. ~rill have problems producin)!: to meet 

their own requirements so, therefore, what thev have dumped on the 

European market should leave a great vacuum over the years coming 

ahead. So if we look towards the future we should have a little 

bit more success in the marketplace in Europe. If you compare 

our wood costs in Europe, in Scandinavia - the Scandinavian t~ood costs 

are as hi)!:h or even higher than our ~ewfoundland or Canadian wood. 

MR. ROBERTS: They are buying it here and taking it to Scandjnavia 

now. 
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'MR. MCNEIL: l~ell, that is the point I was going to make. 

The fact that they are not·r buying our Labrador wood, which 

we in Newfoundland, in our own Province find 
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Mr.McNeil: 

too expensive to use,we can sell, it to Europe, it is economically 

feasible to sell it to Europe. Why? And then when we get on 

the market place we cannot sell our product because of the high 

cost of wood. If in the Scandinavian countries they have a 

high·cost of wood, and if they can buy ours it must be higher, 

their cost of wood must be higher than ours. We are told that 

the Scandinavians have the same high employment cost, the 

higher wood costs. The only factor where they are a little 

ahead of us their transportation problem is not as great. 

Mr. Speaker, that is only one area, the wood problem 

area,and I think with a little effort if the government approached 

the people of Newfoundland and gave them a figure, you say to the 

woods contractor, You must come down to $50.00 a cord or we cannot 

survive. This has never been done to my knowledge.~oods contractors 

in the Stephenville area, for example, just going back a couple 

of·months ago, were supplying wood at a rate of $44.00·per cord 

to the mill, d~livered. They were told the night before they 

were going to start up operations, and they had set up all of their 

equipment in the area, they had the private contractor, he had 

cleared roads, repaired his equipment, spent thousands and thousands 

of dollars in preparation, hired his men~to be told the night before 

he was to start that we cannot take any more wood because the mill 

is going down and we do not know when we are going to open up; 

rather than saying to this contractor, Continue with your contract, 

we will buy your wood, we will honour our commitment. And this 

'Mr. Speaker, is wood cost at $44.00 per cord. This contractor came 

to me, and he is a very reputable gentleman, he said, ·~y men are 

losing confidence in me; one day I hired them and the next day I 

had to fire them because I cannot get a solid commitment from the 

government owned mill." He asked me "What do the government want? 

Do ·they want the mill to operate?" And I got to tell him;'Yes, I do," 

but I am not sure if the government want the mill to operate. I am 
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Mr. McNe-il: 

not convinced. 

On every statement we heard to date we have always 

heard that we will have to look at the operation, we are not 

sure, and they always leave the option open that we will have to 

close the mill down, that is alway·s left up as an option. Mr. 

Speaker, that is no option. That is no way out. We in Newfoundland 

cannot go looking back and cannot have another failure.we must 

turn it around. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

AN HON. MEMBER: How? Tell us how? 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, the bon. gentleman will have a 

chance in the debate to speak,so he may speak at that time, but 

right now I would like to speak without interruption. 

MR. SP~AKER (DR. COLLINS): Order, please! 

Mr. Speaker, the case I pointed to on Tuesday 

Timiskaming community, Timiskaming, Quebec, they were told by the 

experts in the field that their wood cost was too high. They 

were told that the marketing was not there, but the only 

difference here they worked in the industry, the people in that 

community would not accept what they said. They dug into it 

themselves, and they found out that the market is there but you 

had to go out and dig for it and get it,which our sales staff 

did not do. They wood costs - they made arrnngements with the 

Provincial Government,In certain areas they had a lot of problems. 

In the seasons when the mills would not take their wood,the 

government made sure that the private contractors would continue 

to t~ork by buying their wood or guarantee the purchase of their 

wood. And as a result you had a steady flow of these contractors 

staying into the industry. 

The backbone of the industry has to be the private 

contractor. It has been proven that the mill cannot produce wood 

for itself at an economic rate than what the private contractor 

can do. So therefore, Mr. Speaker, we have to rely on the private 
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Mr. McNeil: 

contractor for the survival of L;ibrador LinE:rboard. 

The past Chairman of ;he Board Mr. Crosbie stated time 

and time again that the mill cannot be viable because, and always 

because of the high cos·t of wood. Well if we get the wood costs 

dQWil, we have g·ot to survive ·because the mill is a new mill, it is 

one of the best in Canada. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: In the world. 
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MR. MCNEIL: 

Or in the t~orld, yes. Mr. Speaker, when the pew executive manager 

came into Stephenville I had the opportunity of questioning him on the 

ability of the local personnel working there. He told me during his 

first few weeks he roamed about in the mill. Nobody knew who he was 

so they were not, you know, playing up to him. He went into the control 

room and he asked this one gentleman,who was only a young fellow, he 

graduated from high school in the Stephenville area three years previous 

to it 1and his first job was with Linerboard and he was working in the 

control room and part of the control panels were out,and he started 

explaining to the mill president, the new mill president, that even 

though this panel is down it is still feeding me information. Even 

though this is not going I am still getting information, giving this, 

etc. ,etc. Mr. Sweeney told me, he said, "That young fellow,only 

three years in the industry,you could put him against another man in 

the industry in any part of Canada with twelve years experience and 

he would still hold up his part." So that speaks very highly of the 

caliber of th~ Newfoundland people,of the labour force, the young 

labour force. They are very adaptable but they need leadership, 

}!r. Speaker. You need leadership and it has to come from the o~~ers 

of the mill,which is our Newfoundland government. 

Hr. Speaker, that is one area and when the bill comes through , ... e 

will be getting into that much deeper. But if ~·e are looking tm.•ards 

the future,and if we want to advertise our Province and have people co~e 

in and settle,! think it would be much more. beneficial if we can make 

Labrador Linerboard a successful operation rather than trying to 

entice people to come in through special cruises like the Norma 

and Gladys and things of that nature. They are good in themselves, 

but we have to prove our worth through proving that we can take an 

industry that has been told it will never be successful from day one, 

that we can take it and make it successful. 

Mr. Speaker, I have a few lines I would like to get into but I 

only have about five minutes. So I will just slightly touch on another 

area, the shipping contracts, Sir. The people of Stephenville did not 
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NR. MCNEIL: 

enter into the shipping contracts. It was the provincial government. 

And why did the provincial government~when they took over from Javelin, 

why did they destroy the original contracts and enter into nel~ contracts 

at a much higher rate, Sir? And then you wonder why the Linerboard cannot 

work. When you size it up and look at it in perspective you wonder 

if sabotage was not committed. 

The people of Stephenville are disturbed. They are Jacking for 

leadership. They are not getting it. They are being blamed for the 

ills of Labrador Linerboard. Mr. Speaker, that is not where the problem 

lies. The problem lies t-lith our government. And if our government stays 

with Labrador Linerboard - and I believe they can change it around, 

I believe they have the resources, the manpower to do it. But, Sir, 

let the truth be known. Put all the cards on the table. And if 

you need 'the people of Stephenville to sacrifice they will come forward. 

But, Sir, you cannot ask them to sacrifice blindly. You must let them 

know where you stand. You must let them know exactly. 

For example, we have not had a financial report on the Linerboard 

!>!ill since 1974, that was the last one. We do not know what is 

going on. t!r. Speaker, my time is running out. I would like to 

give notice that I would like to put forward a sub-amendment ~mich 

w:!ll be seconded by my han. colleague, the member for St. Geor e' 

O•rs. !ac!saac) . The sub-amendment reads, "And specifically demands 

that the government forthwith set up a Royal Commission to enquire 

into and report upon all circumstances surrounding the donation of 

$52,600 to the Progressive Conservative Party by the firm of 

Scrivener Projects Newfoundland Limited, such Commission to have 

all the powers that may be conferred upon the commissioners 



March 10, 1977 Tape no. 898 Page 1 - mw 

Mr. McNeil. 

under the Public Enquiries Act, Chapter 314 of the 

Revised Statues of Newfoundland, 1970!' 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. MCNEIL: Do you want a copy? 

MR. SPEAKER (Dr. Collins): It has been moved and seconded 

that there be added to the amendment as proposed the following: 

"And specifically demands that the government forthwith set up 

a royal commission to enquire into and report upon all the 

circumstances surrounding the donation of $52,600 made to the 

Progressive Conservative Party by the firm of Scrivener Projects 

Newfoundland Limited, such Commission have all the powers that 

may be conferred upon commissioners under the Public Enquiries 

/{ct, Chapter 314 of the Revised Statutes of Newfoundland, 1970." 

MR. HICKMAN: Mr. Speaker, I am trying to find the 

section here now but I am bearing in mind Mr. Speaker's ruling 

the other day. I do submit that that amendment is out of order • ..._ ___ ___ . 

If Your Honour would give me an opportunity to find the section, 

which escapes me now, the number - maybe hon. gentlemen opposite 

can recall it? If you would give me the section that deals with this 

that His Honour relied on then, for the sake of accuracy, I 

can deal with it. 

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, I have heard of all sorts of 

strange points of order in my time, and perhaps I participated 

in some. My submission is that the amendment is very much in 

order, and it is entirely consistent with the ruling ·which the 

Chair handed down on an earlier sub-amendment. Now if the 

gentleman who leads the House opposite, the Minister of Justice; 

has some arguments, then let him put them forward and those of 

us who wish to comment will comment,assuming Your Honour gives us 

leave to do so. But really you cannot deal with a point of order, 

Your Honour, until something is cited or some authority or some rule. 

And in the absence of anything I would suggest, Your Honour, if 
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Mr. Roberts. 

Your Honour, you know,· feels it is in order, put the question, 

and my colleague then is entitled to speak on it and other members 

in the House have the right to speak according to the rules. But 

we cannot wait around while the Government House Leader looks for 

something he believes may be there. I give him my assurance 

that to the best of my knowledge and belief this motion - my 

friend consulted me on it - is proper and in order and we should 

be allowed to debate it. 

MR. HICKMAN: You know, I still have not found it, and I do not 

presume that Your Honour is not fully familiar with the rules, 

because I am sure he is. 

MR. SPEAKER (Dr. Collins): Order, please! 

I presume the hon. minister is rising on a point 

of order. 

MR. HICKMAN: ~es, Mr. Speaker. And what I am simply drawing 

to Your Honour's attention is that in my opinion there has not 

been compliance with the rules with respect to this amendment, 

and I am sorry that I cannot submit so~ething to Your Honour, 

because I know Your Honour is already aware of it. And what 

I am doing is - because generally in most Houses there is an 

indication and that there will be another motion to amend from 

the other side, and I would crave the attention or the delay of 

the House for one moment until I find the one that I am looking for. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. HICKMAN: Well you do not have to. I do not care. 

MR. ROBERTS: To a point of order, Sir. This is intolerable. 

If the hon. Minister of Justice has a point of order, Sir, let him 

state it • 

MR. NOLAN: Throw him the law library. 

MR. ROBERTS: We cannot be asked to have the whole House wait 

while the minister looks for someth~ng which he believes is in 

Beauchesne. He has said that in his opinion it is not in order. Well 

~475 
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~. Roberts. 

I accept his opinion, Sir, but he has given us no reason or 

citations, and I submit, Sir, that it is in order. It is consistent 

with the ruling which the Chair gave on precisely the same point, oh, 

a week or so past when my friend from Windser - Buchans (Mr. Flight) 

moved a further sub-amendment which was discussed, debated, and in 

due course decided. We are now back on the debate. My friend from 

Stephenville has moved a sub-amendment. I submit it is in order, 

Sir. If the hon, gentleman opposite has a reason for his point, let 

him raise it. If not, Sir, then it is intolerable of him to get up 

and display his lack of knowledge of the rules in this way, Sir. 

MR .• FLIGHT: Page 122. 

MR. NEARY: 'Bill' is there advi~;~ing him, l .ook. 

MR.SPEAKER (Dr. Collins.): Order, please! 

Unless there are further points to be made I think 

I am in a positiqn to rule on the admissibility of the sub-amendment. 

SOME HON, MEMBE'lS: Oh, ·oh! 

HR. NOLAN: The other member of the fraternity helped you, 

did he? 

..J 
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'HR. HICKMAN: Order! May I draw Your Honour's attention to the 

rule that it is imperative that every amendment must be relevant 

to the question on which the amendment is proposed. I would 

submit that this particular motion is not relevant to the 

present amendment that we are debating before this han. House. 

I would submit, Mr. Speaker, that following the ruling from the 

Chair on the last sub-amendment that this one is clearly out of 

order.and particularly, Mr. Speaker, -

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, why does he not read all of 

Beauchesne? He may find something in it. 

MR. HICKMAN: All right, carry on. 

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, really this is quite intolerable. The 

han. gentleman has cited a rule which says that the sub-amendment 

must gr~ out of the main question, the question which it proposes 

to amend. Sir, this g~.~~AJI ~t as naturally, Sir, as the 

tree grows from the ground. The amendment, the ground, Sir, in 

the·analogy ~ is that we lack confidence :l..n the government and we 

demand that they take measures within their responsibility. The 

l 
sub-amendment demands a specific measure which is certainly, Sir, 

within the constitutional authority of the government~namely the 

constitution of a Royal Commission. Sir, I submit it is in 

order and I submit we should be allowed to debate it. I submit 

further that the House Leader should be asked, Sir, not to raise 

specious points of order but to raise valid points of order so 

Your Honour can then rule upon them according to the rules of 

this House. 

MR. HICKMAN: Mr. Speaker, on that point of order I refer 

Your Honour, I knew I would find it, to 207,"A sub-amendment to 

the Address in Reply to the Speech from the Throne may be moved 

subject to the same rules as any other amendment. It must be 

relevant to the amendment and cannot raise a new issue." 

MR. ROBERTS: ------ Right,and it does not raise a new issue. 

•. 
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MR. HICKMAN: I submit, Mr. Speaker, that this most assuredly 

raises a new issue and pursuant to the Chair's ruling of yesterday, 

yesterday being a couple of days ago, on the last sub-amendment, 

this amendment is clearly and definitively and precedent-studdedly _ 

out of order. 

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, the hon. Minister of Justice is a 

skilled courtroom lawyer and used to arguing in losing causes 

and knows the tricks of delay but, Mr. Speaker, the analogy is 

precisely to the earlier sub-amendment which was decided after a 

considerable discussion. Indeed I believe the Chair considered 

the matter overnight and then Mr. Speaker made a ruling. The 

same amendment was before the House • . My friend from Windsor-Buchans 

raised a sub-amendment with reference to the matter of a loan, 

and there was some considerable argument on the admissibility of 

the sub-amendment and the Chair ruled it in order. There was a 

further argument about the wording,but that was a separate point 

altogether so the matter was disposed of. The same amendment is 

now before us and my friend from Stephenville has moved a 

sub-amendment which I suggest, Sir, is on all fours with the 

earlier one and even the wit, the undoubted skill and talent of 

the gentleman from Grand Bank district, the Minister of Justice, 

has not produced any argument, Sir. 

MR. SPEAKER(DR. COLLINS): Order please! The matter before us 

arises out of the consideration of section 207 or part of 207 

in Beauchesne which reads in part as follows: "The sub-amendments 

on the Address in Reply to the Speech from the Throne must be 

made to move subject to the same rules as any other amendment. 

It must be relevant to the amendment and cannot raise a new issue. 

Great latitude (continuing on with this section) is allowed in this 

debate. If the amendments and the sub-amendments both take exception 

to the government's financial policy,and the former refers to 

customs duties (this is an example given) the latter is in order if 
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MR. SPEAKER(DR. CO~INS): it refers to income tax or any other mode 

of collecting revenue. But if the amendments deals with consc:ription 

a sub-amendment de;Uing with tariff is irregular." 

Also in Beauchesne section 202., sub-section 3 

reads as follows.: "Since the purpose of a sub-amendment is to alter 

the amendment it should not enlarge upon the scope of the amendment 

but it should deal with matters which are not covered by the 

amendment." 

In consideration of thes.e two guid<7lines I 

would bring to the attention of the Rouse the wording in part of 

the original amendmen.ts which states as follows: "This House 

condemns 
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MR. SPEAKER (Collins): the failure of the ministry to · 

prepare and to present to the House measures adequate to deal 

with the problems confronting Newfoundland and Labrador today~' 

and goes on. 

Now the sub-amendment specifically deals with 

a matter for which a royal commission is advocated, a matter which had to do 

with a donation to a political party. I think in being guided 

by the former section that I read out,and the great latitude 

that has to be given in the Address in Reply, I think that we 

have to take the view that the funding of parties, of political 

parties,is a matter that may be regarded as a problem confronting 

Newfoundland and Labrador today. So that in consideration that 

we are dealing with the Address in Reply,my ruling will have to 

be that this matter does fall within the scope of a problem 

facing the Province. 

In regard to the matter that it has to 

enlarge, that it has to deal with - it should not enlarge upon 

the scope but it should deal with matters that are not covered, 

the original amendment was broadly phrased whereas this is 

specifically phrased and brings up a specific point. I would 

rule therefore that it does fall within the guidelines also. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

The hon. the member for Stephenville. 

MR. MCNEIL: Mr. Speaker, I support the amendment. The 

amendment actually speaks for itself - or the sub-amendment. So, 

Mr. Speaker, without going into a~y great detail on the sub­

amendment, I will give leave to any hon. gentleman who would like 

to speak on the sub-amendment. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS : Hear, hear! 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Mr. Speaker, on a point of personal 

privilege - I am not taking part in this present debate - I wish 

to apologize to Your Honour for a very unbecoming thing that I 

did while Your Honour was speaking. I rose to my feet and left 

the Chamber. That is absolutely contrary to all the rules. 

Z48.,0 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: While Mr. Speaker is speaking no member 

may stand or rise or walk. I was called out in a bit of an 

emergency and that was my only reason and I do apologize. 

_sm!E HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. SPEAKER (Collins): The Chair accepts the apology most 

gladly. I might sa~ to the hon. memoer that the Chair was not 

aware that he had breached the rules of the House 1 but knowing 

that he is so aware and sensitive to the rules, the apology is 

most welcome and in order. 

MR. ROBERTS: 

The han. the Leader of the Opposition. 

Thank you, Sir. I would like to say 

a few words in support of the amendment to the amendment as moved 

by my friend from Stephenville at the conclusion of what I 

thought was a most excellent speech indeed. I realize that I 

cannot talk about his ~.~~use I must confine myself to the 

narrow terms of this sub-amendment and so I shall. But I hope 

that I am permitted to say that I believe my friend from 

Stephenville showed us the type of speech that can and should be 

made by a member who is not only concerned with the problems of 

his district, I believe every han. gentleman is concerned with 

the problems of his district and of the Province but, Sir, 1 

regret that not all, particularly some of the gentlemen opposite, 

are as aware of the full situation about such an important matter 

which so intimately affects his constituents as is the gentleman 

from Stephenville. I thought it was an admirable speech. 1 

thought he brought a great de.al ;a the debate and I would hope 

that he will make further points with respect to the Linerboard 

mill both in a debate which will come on in due course in respect 

to a government bill,and also in the further amendments to the 

Throne Speech that will be moved in the course of the proceedings 

of the House. 

Now, Sir, this amendment really is 

very, very straightforward. It is in quite definitive and 

specific terms and really I will be very surprised if han. 

gentlemen opposite do not welcome it. Because I think, Sir, that 

we face a unique 
2481. 
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MR. ROBERTS: 

situation with respect to this particular cont.ribution, one without 

parallel~to my knowledge 1in the history of this Province of ours. No~1 

let me hasten to say, Mr. Speaker, that that which is without parallel 

is not the fact that political donations have been received. It would 

be folly, it would be stupidity of a great order if I were to pretend 

for a moment that parties do not receive donations. Of course they 

do. Elections must be financed. Elections are expensive exercises. 

They are getting more expensive all the time. The very newspapers 

and television stations that editorially decry political contributions 

are the very first to demand cash in advance, cash on the line for 

political advertising. You know~money is part of politics and always 

will be and parties,! guess as long as there have been parties,have 

accepted election contributions or accepted contributions which are 

put in their election fund. Certainly, Sir, the party which I lead 

has accepted contributions and will continue to do so until the law 

in this Province is made as I believe and as my part believes it 

should be, n~ely that contributions are banned and that the cost 

of elections is limited and that the cost of elections is subscribed 

out of the publjc purse. But, Sir, that is a different point. I 

hope '-Te will have the opportunity to debate it at some point,but I 

guess that is a little beyond the terms of this particular amendment. 

But I just wanted to make it clear that there is no offence jn 

my eyes in the fact that, and there is nothing unusual in the fact 

that a firm made a donation to a party. There are however some things 

that are unusual.. First of all there is the - well before I talk about 

that let me simply confirm what I said the other day. It has now been 

confirmed by the man best able to confirm it, Mr. Richard Greene. Let 

me confirm the fact that the receipt which my friend from LaPoile (Mr. 

Neary) tabled is a genuine receipt. Today's issue of the Evening 

Telegram on Page 3 has a very large headline which says, ''Greene's 

Admission Heightens Fuss Over Policial Contribution," and the story 

begins as follows: 

"Former Progressive Conservative Party Finance Chairman, Richard 

Greene,says a receipt acknowleding a $52,600 contribution to the party 
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from Scrivener Projects Newfoundland Limited tabled Friday in the 

legislature by Steve Neary, Independent Liberal, LaPoi1e, is genuine 

and is signed by him. 'This is a genuine receipt for a genuine political 

contribution,' Mr. Greene said yesterday in an interview outside his 

Duck~<.'Orth Street law office." 

Hr. Speaker, that is a manful statement by Mr. Greene, a straight­

forward statement and one to which nobody could take objection. He 

has confirmed that the receipt which he signed, a copy of which '~as 

tabled here in the House the other day by the gentleman for LaPoile 

(Mr. Neary),is a genuine one. In other words, Sir, there can be no 

doubt at all because of course }fr. Greene was in the position to issue 

that receipt and to sign such a receipt. He was the Finance Chairman 

for the Progressive Conservative Party at that time. There can be no 

doubt at all that ~ :til.:: ~~·ar 1973, on July 14,!-<r. Greene signed 

a receipt that indicated that during the year 1972 he received from 

A. Davidson in behalf of Scrivener Projects Newfoundland Limited the 

sum of $52,600 representing contributions to the PC Party during 

the year 1972. So that is common ground. There can be no argument 

with that. There can be no argument at all with that fact. It. is 

admitted • It is genuine. It is real. The Tory Party received 

$52,600 from Scrivener Projects Newfoundland Limited. 

Now, Sir, I have said that political contributions are a fact of 

life. They might not be the most pleasant fact of life but they are 

a very real fact of life for the PC Party of this Province, for the 

Liberal Party, the NDP Party ~nd every party in this Province and 

elsewhere. (I need that one, that is where Dick Greene tells the 

truth) 

AN HON. MEMBER: Sorry. 

HR. ROBERTS: So, Why should I support the amendment? Why should 

we demand that a Royal Commission be set up? And what are we talking 

about anyway? A contribution has been made. Why should we get upset 

over that? In fact,wy own party,as I have said publicly and I say again 

now,has received contributions from the Scrivener firm, not while we 

were in government but at about this same time. I do not know the 
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MR. ROBERTS: amount,but I am assured by the people who 

are responsible for that aspect of our party's affairs that 

the amounts were nowhere near comparable, nowhere near 

comparable at all. In any event a royal c~ission when 

it is set up would certainly,! guess,be able to subpoena 

the people who handle these things in our party if they 

felt it was relevant and then,you know,the normal course 

would follow. 

Sir, what makes this contribution so 

unusual? tfuy? I mean why get upset over it? v7hat is it 

about the $52,600? I mean,what is going to require the 

gentleman from St. John's North (~r. 3. CARTER) to vote in 

favour of a royal commission·to look into this, 

NM- 1 

as he will? The gentleman from St. John's East (Mr. ~farshall)~ 

as he too will vote in favour of it,I am sure. The gentleman 

from Kilbride (Mr. Wells), men of probity and integrity and 

men not afraid to take a stand, independent T!len, men of 

orinciple. 

k~ HON. MEMBER: Hear! Hear! 

MR. ROBERTS: What is so unusual about this? I mean,so it is 

a political contribution and all sorts of parties get contributions 

and all sorts of companies make contributions. So what? So what, 

it may be said. 

Well, Mr. Speaker, the circumstances surrounding this 

particular contribution I suggest are unusual, in fact are so 

very unusual that an impartial and a thorough investigation into 

those circumstances is not only demanded but,I submit,is 

imperative and is certainly required in the interest of the 

public of this Province. 

v7hy, Sir? Well two reasons; first of all the 

amount involved is immense, absolutely immense in political terms. 

It may not be immense in terms of the government of the Province. 

It may not be immense in a lot of other terms, but $52,600 is an 
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MR. ROBERTS: immense sum of money in terms of political contributions. 

How can I prove that? I cannot. I can only speak in terms of 

my own knowledge, and my mm. knOW'ledge is as general as that 

of any leader of a party9 but I have no hesitation in saying 

that based on my knowledge in my four or five years as leader 

of a party, leader during two general elections, generally the 

period when contributions are sought and contributions are 

obtained and contributions are spent, that $52,600 is an 

immense sum of money, particularly, Mr. Speaker, coming as 

it does from a firm that has no real interest in this Province. 

The Scrivener firm came into this Province just to 

do one specific job, a very big job,I will grant you, but 

only one specific job. That is all. They are not an old, 

established firm doing business here. Take,for example,the 

Iron Ore Company of Canada or Bowaters or Price,who are 

among the larger firms doing business in Newfoundland and 

Labrador, firms with a continuing presence here, firms with 

substantial investment here, an investment that has gone on 

for many years and will continue I suppose as far as man can 

foresee. 

It might be understood. I mean they have a long 

term interest and I would think they might be interested in 

contributing to the partirs. They support the free enterprise 

system and I would see nothing wrong with them contributing 

to the parties. Certairly it is legal and lawful and proper 

and it is done. I do not know whether those firms contribute 

or not, that is beside the point. The point I am making is that 

the Scrivener firm came into this Province for one specific 

project,and when that project was finished their intent, their 

intent was when that pToject was finished to leave this Province. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: Yes the hon. gentleman ought to -

MR. ROBERTS: Sure, of course. 

MR. SMALLWOOD: - remind us that in coming into this Province 

they did not come in to do business commercially but only with 
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MR. SMALLWOOD: the g.overnment of the Province. 

MR. ROBERTS: The bon. gentleman from Twillingate has 

made a valid point and a very valuable point. Because the 

Scrivener. frim, which is a reputable firm, Sir, not a btlnch 

of fly-by--nights, indeed I was the. Uinister of Health 

who recommended the Scrivener firm be em?loyed here. And 

I was just looking through some of my old Cabinet papers, 

memoranda at the time, memoranda to and from my officials, 

not the originals. 

NM- 3 

MR. ROUSSEAU: The Scrivener firms, there are two, Scrivener 

and Scrivener Engineering, two different firms. 

MR. ROBERTS: 

empire. 

I mean they are all owned by the same corporate 

MR. NEARY~ Scrivener Newfoundland Limited. 

MR. ROBERTS: We insisted, as a matter of fact I say to my 

friend from Menihek (l-Ir. Rousseau) that they incorporate 

a Newfoundland firm, called Scrivener Newfoundland Limited. 

MR. NEARY: That is right. 

NR. ROBERTS: Or Scrivener ProJects Newfoundland, the firm that 

~~:ave this immense sum of money. 

But I was the Ninister of HeE>lth at the time. I 

am just lookinR through some of the papers, recommended by the 

officials - well forget whom recommende.d them. I mean 
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Mr. Roberts. 

I brought it to my colleagues in the Cabinet,as did my colleague, 

the Minister of Public Works - nothing at all wrong with that 

firm. They were a very good choice, a very good choice. But they 

only came into Newfoundland for this one purpose, Sir. It is not 

as if they were an engineering firm- in Toront~,I guess their 

headquarters was -who said to themselves, '~ell, look, let us 

go down to Newfoundland. There are, you know, opportunities 

there. We will set up our shop and see if he can get a little 

business." There are a number of engineering firms in Newfoundland 

along those lines. They have done well here over the years. There 

will probably be more. Some local and some owned by mainland interests. 

But Scrivener came in for only one specific project and that was the 

Health Science project. I mentioned the other day in the House 

in a debate on another sub-amendment, Sir, the reason they were 

eroployed,it was -simply that Mr. Harvey Self - and I was just looking 

through the HaRsards for 1973, and I made the same point then. 

Mr. Val Earle was then Minister of Public Works. 

MR. DOODY: A fine man. 

MR. ROBERTS: He was a fine man. He was indeed, Sir. A terrible 

politician, but a fine man despite that, and an honest man. Obviously 

reading debate he found it very uncomfortable to have to defend the 

government's conduct in~hat- we were talking particularly about 

the Carbonear Hospital. And Mr •. Earle was obviously - it comes through 

in every word of the Hansard report, everv word of it, that he 

was wishing devoutly that he was anywhere but here in the House of 

Assembly having to answer questions on that point at that time. .Be 

that as it may, Sir, the point I was making is that the Scrivener 

firm were hired because of their contractual link with the gentleman 

named Mr. Harvey Self,who had and has an enviable and an eminent reputation 

in this particular field of health science complexes. 
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Mr. Robert~. 

In any ~vent, Sir, the point is that this is a large 

donation, a very large donation, a significant donation. 

It is probably one of the largest donations ever,made to a 

political party in this Province. This donation was made 

by a firm with no continuing interests in this Province, 

a firm that could hardly be said to have a long-term interest 

in the Government of the Province and in the good Government of 

the Province. And, Sir, on top of that a firm that came into 

Newfoundland only to do business with the government. 

Now, Sir, those facts in themselves I suggest 

are enough to put one on guard when the facts came out, and 

when my friend from LaPoile (Mr. Neary) tabled the receipt, the 

genuine re~eipt, the admittedly genuine receipt. Mr. Speaker, 

those facts in themselves, as I have said, in my view are enough 

to justify the most thoroughgoing and rigorous examination of the 

facts, the truth. And I find it significant,by the way,that 

since th:l.s matter ~me out on Friday - it was Friday,was it not, 

in the House? - in the House, and despite the fact that I have 

asked a number of questions, and a number of speeches have been made, 

that no member of the ministry has made a statement on it with the 

exception of the Premier making a very wishy-washy statement on 

Orders of the Day on Monday. The Premier has been absent from 

the Province since then. He is on another of his jaunts, another 

holiday, another trip away, taking four or five days to do What 

should be done in a day. But oe that as it may,we are told he 

will be back with us tomorrow, and we look forward to that 

with anticipation and with interest. But no member of the ministry, 

Sir, has made a statement on this. It is funny. Given their 

propensity for making statements on every conceivable issue, at 

any conceivable time, that in itself is interesting as well, Sir. 

So we have that series of facts. 
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Mr. Roberts . 

Now, Sir, let us look at the other series of facts, the 

rest of the facts that relate to this donation. At the time 

this doua~ion was made, Mr. Speaker, at the time this firm 

made these very large contributions - and I commend this to my 

friend from Exploits (Dr. Twom.ey) who is but newly arrived in the 

House, and a man of honour and probity and integrity. I ask -him 

to approach this impartially, becau-se this is not a question 

simply of party politics . This is a question going to the heart 

of ~he whole democratic process - at the time that t.he Scrivener 

firm were making these immense cont.ributions, at the time the 

Scrivener firm, a firm with no long-term interests in this Province, 

were making these immense contributions, at the time the Scrivener 

firm, a firm 
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MR. ROBERTS: that came to this province only to do business 

with the government,were making these immense contributions, at 

that very same time, Sir, they were negotiating with the government 

a cost-plus fee contract. 

The other day in the House I referred to the contract. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: I tabled it. 

MR. ROBERTS: I give credit to the hon. gentleman from Menihek. He 

did table it. 

MR. ROUSSEAU: And a better contract,by the way,than they had 

settled for. 

MR. ROBERTS: It may well be. We will deal with that, Sir. We 

will deal with that. The Royal Commission will go into that.and 

we will get the truth. I referred to the contract and I did not 

have it ~ith me at that moment and my friend from LaPoile was 

kind enough to let me have a look at his copy of the contract,and 

I read it quickly and as it turned out I misread it. What I said 

was that the contract was originally made in 1971 and added to 

in 1973. ~-
MR.. SPEAKER: Order,please! I must interrupt the hon. gentleman 

to inform members of the matters to be debated at 5:30 P.M. I have 

received notice of five and there can only be three ?and the 

three will be as follows and they are in fact in the order in which 

I received them. The first one - the bon. Leader of the Opposition 

arising out of a question asked the hon. Premier with respect to 

the remission of sales tax on electricity fg~ heating purposes. --
The second one - arising from a question asked bv the hon. 

member for LaPoile of the hon. the Premier 

on the subject matter the cost and completion date of the Health 

Science Project. The third one - the hon. member for Bellevue 

arising from a question asked the hon. Minister of Industrial 

and Rural Development on the subject matter of loans to sawmills 

on the Avalon Peninsula. 

The hon. Leader of the Opposition. 
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MR. ROBERTS: Thank you, Mr. Speaker. ,As I was saying, Sir, I 

misread the contract,looking at it hurriedly here in the House. 

The contract I said was 1971 but it was not. The document now, 

as the minister just confirmed,was made as of the 15th day of 

June A.D. 1971 and as the minister has, I think, just indicated, 

the contract was entered into the 5th day of July A.D. 1973 and 

of course the gentleman from Menihek has knowledge of it because 

at that time he was Minister of Public Works and there is affixed 

to it his signature .or what purports to be his signature and I 

assume in fact it is his signature. That is the contract. 

Now that contract, Mr. Speaker, sets forth the fees 

which are paid or payable to Scrivener in respect of this particular 

project and it sets them forth in some considerable detail. Now 

let me say that I do not know whether that was a good contract or 

not, I am not an engineer. I am not an engineering consultant. 

I have no way to know. I am quite prepared to believe the 

Minister of Public Works believes it to be a good contract. There 

is no doubt at all of that,just as I l-ave no doubt, Sir, that he 

will support this call for a Royal Commission. There is no doubt 

at all of that, Sir, because since he believes it so very deeply 

he will want to have it cleared up because he may believe it 

deeply,and I do not doubt that he does, Sir, but there are 

blankety few other people in this province who believe it. 

Because, Sir, whether this contract is a good 

one or a bad one or an indifferent one~and I make no charges ~ 

indeed I would spurn any charges against the Minister of Public 

Works. He of all other men on that side, Sir, I would spurn any 

charge involving him. I want to make that clear. At the same · 

time this contract was being negotiated and signed, during that 

period, Sir, this was precisely the time when this immense, giantic 

contribution was being received by the Tory Party. The same party 
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MR. ROBKRTS: that made up the goverrunent of the Province . 

Mr. Speaker, those two facts and now let me add a third. Something 

str~nge happened. The original estimate in 1971 for management 

fees, planning consultant, architect, engineering consu.ltants, 

special consultants and managemene - What was it, Sir? The total 

cost of the project at that stage was stated as $45 million and 

of that a portion 1.tas set ·aside - and these are figures which I 

believe were tabled in the House by the present minister. If he 

does not have a copy in front of him I will gladly, 
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MR. ROBERTS: 

if somebody would make a copy of this document I now have I would gladly 

send it to him. If anybody wants it tabled, I will be h2ppy to table 

it. I assume it was tabled because I certainly had no access to any 

document that was not made public. 

But, :Hr. Speaker, out of a project budget of $45 million in 1971 

$3.65 millions was set aside for fees in the five categories that 

I have just enumerated, planning consultant, architects, engineering 

consultants, special consultants and management. There is no greater 

breakdo~m given than that here, no greater breakdown than that available 

to me. In 1971 there was also set aside,for a time escalation,$2.5 

million out of $45 million. The minister will confirm my figures. 

I am reading them correctly and accurately. $2.5 million set aside 

out of $45 million to cover escalation in respect of tl.me on every 

single aspect of that immense project, the Health Sciences Complex 

over here, the biggest single building every built in Newfoundland 

and Labrador, the biggest single governmental building. Haybe 

industrial projects are larger. 

Now, Sir, subsequently the estimates were updated as indeed 

they have to be. Of course. they have changed significantly since 

then I have no doubt. In fact I am sure they have. The minister has 

said so here in the House. One .of the thi11gs that was changed •'as 

of course the $2.5 milHon total escalation allowance ~·as spread 

about a little. Well let us look, Sir, at what was done. The 

$2.5 million was reduced to $800,000. So in 1972 at the t!we the 

second estimates were done :.. I th:l.nk the paper was done in 1973 -

but as of 1972 it was estimated that the total time escalation cost 

based on April, 1972 construction start was only $800,000 instead 

of $2.5 million as it had been the year before. $1.7 million had 

been taken off that particular subhead out of the total expenditure 

of $45 million as estimated and had been moved. 

Now, Sir, it should be noted that the total cost had not 

escalated. It was $45 million in 1971 and $45 million in 1972. All 

that happened were amounts were reallocated within the total. The minister 
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MR. ROBERTS: 

will confirm that. 

Perhaps the ceiling had been placed on it. ~lR. MARSHALL: 

_llR. ROBERTS: Hell I do not know anything about ceilings. I mean 

I only know what is here. The minister may know something I do not. 

It would be most unlikely if he did not. I may know some things the 

minister does not know. I may also know some things that minister does 

not think I know and '''auld devoutly hope I do not know. 

Mr. Speaker, the total cost had not escalated, $45 millions 

$45 millions: The time escalation, that amount called time escalation, 

had gone from $2.5 million to $800,000. Moveable furniture and 

equipment, a provisional sum it is noted had remained steady at 

$5.32 million. Progressive design contingency had gone from $2 million 

down to $506,000. Location and geographic contingency had gone from 

$1.2 million dmm to $400,000, a reasonable thing in view of the fact 

that by the tfme the second figures were done the location had been 

confirmed and set and established. Costs for civil,mechanical and 

electrical had gone from zero in the first allocation to $4,050,000 1 

still out of the same $45 million in each case, Sir. 

The Central Utilities Building ,which ,,·as sho'l-m as $2.8 million 

in the 1971 fir.ure,had disappeared in the 1972 figure. It had been 

buried elsewhere. The building is built. The building had to be 

built but it was sho'Wtl elsewhere. The total construction costs "-'hich 

were estim~ted in 1971 to total $27.53 million by 1972 had escalated 

to $28.524 millions. 

Now, ¥r. Speaker, I have touched upon every item in this budget 

cost estimates supplied by the ministry of the day with one exception, 

the fees. They were $3.65 million in 1971. In 1972 they had escalated 

to $5.4 million, an 
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MR. ROBERTS: an escalation of fifty per cent. 

MR.:SIMMONS: And the same total expenditure. 

MR. ROBERTS: The same total expenditure. Originally, 

Sir, out of $45 million, $3,650,000 was set aside for fees 

for planning consultants, architec~s, engineering consultants, 

special consultants and management. A year later,the same 

total cost,$45 million, the fees allocation had increased 

from $3.65 million to $5,400,000,oan increase if arithmetic 

does not fail me, of $1,750,000, which is an increase of 

fifty per cent. 

MR. SIMMONS: From eight ner cent of the total to twelve per cent . . 

MR. ROBERTS: Well ~y friend from Burgeo-Bay d'Espoir, 

very rapid in his calculations,says an increase from eight per cent 

of the total to twelve per cent of the total, a staggering, 

staggering increase, an increase that has never been explained. 

Now, Sir, the question I ask and I ask it squarely, 

I ask it squarely, the minister will try to answer it, Sir, but 

only a royal commission can answer it. The question I ask, Sir, 

is:are the two sets of facts related. And every hon. member 

in this House must ask himself or herself whether there are 

any relations between two sets of facts. What are those two 

sets? ~~at are those two sets of facts? Mr. Speaker, the first 

is that the amount paid to Scrivener and to whoever else may 

be involved in that, but Scrivener'.s chunk is in there, S~r, the 

fees have gone from $3,~50,000 to $5,40n,noo, fact one, fact there 

set up. The second set of facts is that during the same period 

that those estimates were upped that the contract was negotiated 

with retroactive effect, the contract specifying the fees, during 

the same period the PC Party accepted, I do not say solicited, 

I have my suspicions there but I do not say that, I do not make 

any charges there, but accepted - it would be interesting to have 

Mr. Greene on the witness stand and ask him whether that contribution 
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MR. ROBERTS: was solicited,and he would tell the truth wkatever 

the truth may be - but during that same period the PC Party, 

which remember, Sir, was the same as the government, no secret 

back and forth there, they won an election quite handily,,the 

PC Party accepted from that same firm an immense contribution. 

So, Sir, those are the two sets of facts. Those 

are the two sets of facts,and I ask simply how any fair minded 

person, how any man like the gentleman from Kilbride (Mr. Wells), 

I know how he is going to vote on this, the gentleman from 

Exploits (Dr. Twomey), the gentleman from St. John's South 

(Dr. J. Collins), the gentleman from St. John's North 

(Mr. J. Carter), and the gentleman from Mount Scio (Dr. R. Winsor), 

a constituency in which I am resident, my member if you wish, 

the gentleman from St. John's East. (Hr. M.arshall). None of 

these men is in the Cabinet. All of them are men for whom I have 

the deepest of resp~ct and admiration. All of them men of independent 

principle and honour. All of them men, Sir, who ~~ill stand and 

be counted. And I do not see how any of those men, Sir, could 

fail to vote for this motion. 

SO"'U': Hf'IN. MEMBERS: Hear! Rear! 

MR. ROBERTS: I do not see how anybody could nossibly fail to 

on the facts.which I have put out. There has been no rebuttal. 

The matter has gone on for the better part of a week. It has 

now got to the point where Mr. Richard Greene, a lawyer, 

a well established memher of the Bar, a prominent lawyer, 

practicinp. downtown, a former~ember of this House, Sir, he 

served here for I believe one term until my friend from, as 

he then was my friend from Bell Island, now my friend from 

LaPoile (Mr. Neary),dispatched Mr. Greene in the electoral 

process. But a man who served as a member of this House. 

Mr. Greene has now confirmed that the receipt 

is genuine, that the amount in fact was received. Mr~ Greene, 

the same Mr. Greene a former law parter of the gentleman from 
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MR. ROBERTS: Kilb1:ide (Mr, Wells) , a man who~e words, 

Sir, must be taken with great serious.ness and great 

solemnity. I do not: see how anybody,. Sir, could possibly 

take any position other than there must be a royal commission. 

Oh there have been lots of charges made in the past, lots of 

talk in the pa!Ot, Mr, Speaker, but never before have the 

facts come out publicly about this kind of monkey business, 

this kirld of transaction, Never before in the entire 

history of this Province\to my knowledge. And there are 

gentlemen in the House, Sir, who have served in public 

life far longer thap. I have. 'riley can 
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MR. ROBERTS: tell me if I am wrong. Imrilense 

contributions~fact one, undoubted , unarguable. Fact two, a 

contract negotiated during that same period and the result of 

the contract was the total fees payable went from $3,650,000 

$5,400,000. Are the two facts related? I do not know, Sir. 

I do not know. Nobody knows except honourable gentleman 

opposite and they have not said. The Premier has made no 

statement on this, no minister has made any statement on this, 

nobody has been heard to speak on it. The Scrivener firms 

themselves have gone bankrupt, no longer in existence. Mr. 

Greene has confirmed the genuineness of it but has said nothing 

else. How could he? All he did was receive the money and pass 

it on to wherever it was passed on to. It would be interesting 

to find out where it went. It would be very interesting to 

find out where it went, whether it was all spent for legitimate 

political purposes or whether any of it was used for other 

purposes. 

Are the two facts connected? As I 

have said, I do not know. And nobody knows who have said. And 

furthermore I will say that any minister opposite who speaks on 

this now will not, with all respect to him, Sir, be believed by 

all in this Province. I have no doubt if a minister makes a 

statement he will believe it and believe it tG be true. But, Sir, 

you do not have to be a perverse minded person, you do not have to 

be cynical or of a doubting cast of mind to believe that there 

might just be some cause and some effect in this relationship, 

that there might be a relationship between the fact that the 

P.C.Party received $50,000 in campaign contributions or political 

contributions and at the same time negotiated or renegotiated a 

contract one of the effects of which was to put up whatever portion 

of that fee goes to Scrivener. But that is all we are saying. We 

are not making any wild charges. Indeed I have made no charges at 

all, Sir. But I say the facts cry out for an investigation and 

I will be shocked to the very core of my being if when the 
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MR. ROBERTS : Minister of Public Works,who 

apparently has been given the unenviable task of 7eplying to 

this -

MR. ROUSSEAU: I am working on it. 

MR. ROBERTS: I said the Minister of Public Works 

who apparently has been given the unenviable task of replying 

to this motion. I will be shocked to the very core of my being 

if the ministry do not announce that they have set up a royal 

commission. I do not expect them, Sir, I do not expect them to 

vote for this amendment as a ministry because it condemns them, 

because it is a motion of non-confidence. But I do expect them, 

Sir, to make the motion of no effect and null and void by setting 

up a royal commission. 

.AN HON. ME:t-1BER: 

:HR. ROBERTS : 

Hear, hear! 

If they do not, Sir, what possible 

explanation coulq there be? What are they hiding? Never before 

have the facts come out like this. The receipt is genuine, $52,600. 

Genuine! Genuine, Sir! The facts are there. Furthermore the 

facts are there that the contract with Scrivener was renegotiated. 

The minister may say, Oh, a better contract. Well, we will let 

the royal commission decide that. And the fact remains that one 

of the results of that renegotiation was reflected in this 

estimate gone up from $3.5 million - $3.65 millions - to $5,400,000 1 

an escalation of 50 per cent on the same total estimated project 

cost, Absolutely unanswerable, ~tr. Speaker. The only answer can 

be for a minister to stand and say, Mr. Speaker, we have nothing 

to hide. We have nothing to hide. We will set up the royal 

commis~ion. After all, we are the crowd that set up all the other 

royal commissions. We were not scared to set one up into some 

allegations about liquor store leases. We were not scared to set 

them up into everything else and we are going to set one up into 

this and let the chips fall where they may. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. ROBERTS: And we will see, Sir. There can be 

no other acceptable answer. 
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MR. MURPHY: Do you want to go right back tQ 1949? 

MR. BO:SERTS; No, Mr. SpeakE\r •. Let them go back 

to 1949 and let them go beyond that, Sir. Let them investigate 

everything else they want including the proceeds of bingo games 

and anything else they want to investigate as long as it is in 

order for them to do it~ 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. ROBERTS: But I say let them investigate this. 

And I say, Sir, that every hon. gentleman in this House, every hon. 

gentleman in this House,and my friend the lady frOlll St. George's, 

Sir, will have to search their individual consciences because, Sir, 

this is one of these issues where they will have to stand and be 

counted. 

Are they go.ing to be party to a cover 

up? Because if there is no royal commission, Mr. Speaker, there is 

a cover up. If there is no royal commission there is a cover up 

underway , the cover up that 
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MR. ROBERTS: 

cannot be tolerated and will not be tolerated hy the people of this 

Province. The government may tolerate it. There may be some men 

supporting the government Who tolerate it. That, Sir, is their right 

if they wish. But I say, Sir, the people of this Province will not 

tolerate it, not on the facts as they are now admitted and proven. 

Up until today Mr. Richard Greene had not admitted publicl~to 

my knowledge at least7 that the receipt was genuine but he has now 

man fashion come forward and said that. And I have no doubt that 

if subpoenaed by a royal commission - and this motion calls for a 

commission with full powers of enquiry- that if a royal commission 

would subpoena Mr. Greene - he is a central character in this sordid 

drama - I have no doubt, Sir, he would tell the full and complete truth. 

Now, Mr. Speaker, I will carry on for a moment or two and then it 

is five-thirty. But I hope to say a few words tomorrow because, of 

course,there are a few other interesting things about the government's 

dealing with Scrivener. The Carbonear Hospital - and "~ will talk 

about that a.little too because there too the record, Sir, which has 

been extensively debated here in the House bears further investir,ation 

in the light now· of the knowledge of this contribution. There were 

enough questions asked at the time about the government ordering 

that contracts be given out without tenders, never denied by the 

government. That is the sort of thing "'here Nr. Earle then ~'inister 

would skate around. 

_MP. NEARY: Mr. Earle admitted to a question that I put to him in 

1974 that be gave contracts without calling tenders. 

~!R. ROBERTS: Well my friend from LaPoile (Mr. Neary) has refreshed 

the House's memory on the point. But the government did give out 

contracts, instructed Scrivener to give them out and at the same 

time the relations between the Scrivener firm and the government, Sir, 

are so entertwined. Sir, there is something rotten in the State 

of Denmark, obviously something rotten in the State of Denmark. 

The Minister of Public Works has a particular responsibility in 

his present portfolio. He has to stand to say Whether he "~11 support 
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MR. ROBERTS: 

the royal commission. There has to be an investigation, Sir, an 

impartial one by sene citizen of repute, of integrity, a man who 

could look into this and let the chips fall where they may, let the 

truth come out, What are they scared of? What are they scared of? 

SOME RON, MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

l-lR.. ROBERTS: So I hope, Sir, I hope that when the House meets 

tomorrow, the Premier Who by then will have presumably returned for a brief 

stay in the Province, will stand on Orders of the Day and say, "Mr. 

Speaker, I want to announce that this government have today appointed 

a royal commission to look into these allegations and to get to the 

bottom of them and make the truth public." If they do not say it, 

Sir, then the debate will carry on and we will get to the bottom of 

it. 

Mr. Speaker, this House from time to time debates matters that 

are more serious than some of the other matters which we debate. But 

this one, Sir, is more serious than almost any other because it goes 

to the very root of the conduct of government, the very root. The 

ministry negotiating a contract with a firm, a contract that appears 

to have benefited the firm ilr!mensely, a firm that has by admission of 

the ministry been involved in ~ealings that are less than acceptable, 

contracts given without tender. That same ministry accepting imMense 

donations at that ~ame time from that same firm. Mr. Speaker, there 

is no way that can be justifie~. There is no way it can be covered up. 

It must be examined. It must be examined impartially and publicly. 

And I say to the gentleman for St. John's Center (Mr. Murphy), a man 

whose integrity is well knotm, he tells us of it often, that man t~ould 

be the very first to demand an investigation, Sir, to demand it -

SmlE RON. :!o!EMBEP.S: Hear, hear! 

}!R. ROBERTS: - and to go to the Premier and say, "Premier, unless 

you set up that royal commission you consider me outside your Cabinet, 

Yr. Premier, consider me out because I will not stand for it any longer. 

I am a man of integrity." I expect the hon. gentleman forSt, John's 

Center (Nr, Hurphy) to say that, Sir • 

.JfR. MURPHY: 

side. 

Now you are talkin~ like me when I was on the other 
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MR. ROBERTS: 

Yes, Mr. Speaker, I would have done the same thing. 'Whenever there 

~ve been alleg;1tions made with the evidence and the truth supporting them, 

then the:se_ a,llegations have been mad.e. There is truth in these 

allegations, Sir. Mr. Richard Greene,hardly a political friend of 

mine or this party's, Mr. Richard Greene has stated that irrefutably, 

unarguably, unanswerably. 

Mr. Speaker, it is now five-thirty. If it is in order I would 

1110ve the adjournment o£ this deba.te and then we will go on with the 

Late Show procedure, Sir, and we will resullie this when next the 

government call the Throne Speec:, presumably tot!lorrow, Sir. ":>~ 
_§OME HON. MEMBERS: !lear; hear. / 

MR. SPEAKER: It being five-thirty a motion to adjourn is deemed to 

be before the Chair. The first subject matter for debate is the 

revision of the Sales Tax on electricity used for heating purposes. 

The hon. Leader of the Opposition. 

~ R. ROBERTS: Thank you, }lr . Speaker , I guess one of the jobs cf 

parliamentary life is you have to sw;itch from top i c to t opic . And 

so accordingly let me say a few words about this question of the 

tax levied by the governrnent . .,.,ith respect to the use of electricity 

for heating purposes. 

Now, Sir, I gather that the Premier 
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MR. ROBERTS: Well the Premier is not here, I assume the 

Minister of Mines and Energy will speak for the Ministry 

in respo~se to the question. 

But my question to the Premier was whether 

the government were prepared to take off the tax as it 

applied to electricity used for heating purposes. The 

Premier in answering that question said no. He gave a 

reason, his reason was that he did not think the government 

could afford it at this time but he did say no. 

NM- 1 

Well, Sir, I disagree with that. And I disagree 

with it because I think the tax is unfair and discriminatory. 

There are only one group of heat consumers in this Province 

and the consumers of heat in this Province include all of the 

people in . this Province. There are only one group of people ~•ho 

pay a tax on the fuel which they consume for heating purposes. 

And that, Sir, is the people who use electricity to heat their 

homes. 

Now, Sir, I have attempted to get some figures, and 

I think these are accurate. They have come from the Light and 

Power Company and they apply to about eighty-five per cent of 

the Province which I am told is the percentage of the consumers 

in the Province supplied by the Light and Power Company. They 

estimate that during the 1976 year, and obviously the most 

Eecent fi~ures, something of the order of 720 billion kilowatt 

hours were used for electric heating in this Province. About 

two-thirds of the total amount of electricity consumed in their 

estimation is used for electric heat. 

In the St. John's -Mount Pearl area about 206 billion 

kilowatt hours were used for electrical heat purposes. No, I am 

sorry, Mr. Speaker, I have millions and billions confused, millions 

in each case, 206 million kilowatt hours. 

AN RON. MEMBER: Too many dots. 
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MR. ROBERTS: Yes, as a former and very ~reat Chancellor 

of the Exchequer once said,"Those damn dots," Lord Randolph Churchill, He 

came to a grevious end politically. I would commend it to 

my friend from Harbour Main - Bell Island. 

Mr. Speaker, of that amount it is estimated -

AN HON. MEMBER: He does not need the dots for that. 

MR. ROBERTS: - it is estimated that the sales tax generated 

across the Province at the ten per cent rate was of the order of 

$2.2 m:{llion, and about $600,000 of that was collected in 

respect of the St. John's area but our concern is with the 

whole Province. So the government get about $2.2 million 

in sales tax from the people who use electrjcity to heat 

their homes. And I think that figure probably applies to the 

whole Province because,of courseJin the other areas of the 

Province where hydro are the suppliers of power the use of 

electricity for heating purposes is actively discouraged because 

it is diesel generated power and cannot be tolerated. 

So that is what it would cost the government, about 

$2.2 million, a fair amount of money. 

the Norma and Glady~ cost. 

?1R. FLIGHT: '1-.lhat? 

It is about twice what 

~. ROBERTS: To put it in ?respective. You know all of thP mnn"'" 

paid by the people who use electric heat throughout this Province . 

and there 1"'L-' .. ~.ousands and thousands of them, all the money 

p;Ji.d !-y those people in tax would l'ay for two Norma and Gladyses. 

MR. FLIGHT: Is that right? 

MR. ROBERTS: That is about what it would do. And I think 

quite simply that in equity and in fairness the government should 

do what they said they would do, which was take the tax off 

electric heat. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS : Hear! Hear! 

MR. ROBERTS: Obviously, Mr. Speaker, the tax if it is 

to remain on electricity used for lighting purposes would still 

apply to those who use electricity for light as well as for heat. 
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MR. ROBERTS: In other words, Sir, I . guess what it would do 

the first part of your bill each month would be subject to 

tax and thereafter would not be taxed, a fairly simple 

arithmetical calculation. But, Sir, that would mean that 

a large group of people of this Province are no longer 

paying an unfair portion of the tax burden. They are doing 

it now, Sir . The government took the tax off fuel ·.oil, I will 

give them credit for that. Now let them complete the 

job and take the tax off electricity. 

When the tax was on fuel oil everybody in the Province 

except those people using wood,which they must get with their 

own sweat and labour, everybody else, Sir, paid a tax on his 

heating consumption. Now, Sir, only the people who use electricity 

pay the tax. It is unfair, it is discriminatory and I think 

the government should remove it, Sir. Thank you. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear! Rear! 

MR. SPEAKER: 

MR. PECKFORD: 

~- . Ml:TRPHY: 

!-m. PECKFORD : 

The hon. ~inister of Minos and Enerp,y . 

Mr. Speaker, like many other -

I hope the Council takes it off oil too. 

-expenditures that government has, like many 

other revenue generating mechanisms that government has this is 

one and as the Leader of the Opposition has pointed out, to use 

his figures, amount·s to around ~2. 2 
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Mr. Peckford. 

million. I am sure that there is nothing more that the government 

would like to do than to remove sales tax off heat that is 

generated by electricity, to remove other taxes that seem 

discriminatory, to provide the consumers of the Province with 

all kinds of protection and to alleviate the tax burdens on 

them. At this point in time when we have a difficult time 

making ends meet it is a very difficult time to entertain the notior 

of reduction of taxes in any form, whether it be the sales, the 

retail sales tax or the personal income tax or whatever. It is 

a very motherhood notion, as the Leader of the Opposition well knows 

and hence why he brought the matter up. It is one that the government 

is well aware of. And if in our means some time in the future we 

can succeed in doing that and still provide the kinds of services that 

are demanded of us by the members of the Opposition, as well as by 

the consumers of the Province, and very often legitimately so, then 

we will ~emove it. But at this present moment,point in time,with 

the fiscal restraints that we have, it is difficult to remove this 

tax as it is, any other tax and still go ahead and provide all the 

services that are being demanded by the consumers of the Province. 

But we are very sensitive to all taxes that we have and to try to 

remove and to try to make things less discriminatory than they seem 

and in many cases that they are. We are very sensitive to it, and 

we are aware of the problems in removing it. 

MR. SPEAKER: The second subject for debate is cost and completion 

date of the Healt.h Science Complex. 

The hon. member for LaPoile. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, first of all I want to congratulate 

the Leader of the Opposition for the way he handled the debate 

this afternoon, and his use of the materials, Sir -

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, can I have order. I only have 

five minutes. 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 
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MR. ROBERTS: Point of order. 

MR. SPEAKER: A point of order has been raised. 

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, the gentleman for LaPoile (Mr. Neary) 

is making a marvelous point, Sir, and I think he should be allowed, 

Sir, the courtesy to be heard, Sir,.without interruption. His 

time is very limited. 

MR. PECKFORD: To that point of order, Mr. Speaker. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 

MR. PECKFORD: I agree whole-heartedly with the Leader of the 

Opposition. I think that perhaps we should even consider giving 

the member for LaPoile (Mr. Neary) additional time so that he 

can praise His Leader Come. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 

The han. gentleman has the right to speak 

without interruption. I would point out if han. members will recall 

last Thursay, then I think what happened then effectively deprived 

han. members of their right, and I would not want to see repetition 

of that. 

The han. member. 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, the Leader of the Opposition made 

excellent use of the material he had at hand. And I hatched the 

egg, Sir, and the Leader of the Opposition - or I laid the egg, the 

Leader of the Opposition, I think, is going to hatch it. A pretty 

good combination,! would say, Sir. But, Mr. Speaker, quite apart 

from the possibility that a $52,000 gift to the bagmen of the PC Party 

might have been the major factor in adding an extra ~6 million or $8 million 

to the cost of the Medical HealthSciences Complex, there is the utter 

foolhardiness of paying anything at all, Mr. Speaker, to the so-called 

project managers who have been directly or indirectly responsible for 

a large part of the practically doubled inflation of the ·original estimate 
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Mr. Neary. 

and cost of the entire project. The bankrupt Scrivener Projects 

Newfoundland Limited, Sir, obviously unable to manage their own 

affairs should have been thrown out on their necks long ago, 

before they had a chance, Mr. Speaker, to become a millstone 

on the necks of Newfoundland taxpayers. 

MR. MORGAN: Who brou~ht them in? 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, they should have been thrown 

out before they had a chance to become a millstone on the necks 

of the Newfoundland taxpayers no matter if they are willing 

to pay about one per cent of their price inflation to a party 

bagman. 

SQ}IE HON. MEMBERS : Hear , hear! 

MR. NEARY: Mr. Speaker, let us look at the record of this 

project. It will take, Sir, approximately eight years to build 

the Health Science~: Complex. It is running at least twenty-four 

months overdue on delivery date with no penalty clauses invoked 

Mr. Speaker, the CN tower up in Toronto, the largest, the highest 

structure in the world was built in less than t'~o years. The 

Empire State Building was built in less time than it will take 

to build the Health Sciences Complex. The Brooklyn Bridge and 

the San Franciso Bridge, all huge gigantic projects, put them 

all together, Sir, and they were built quicker than you can 

build the Health Sciences Complex over here. Contracts were awarded, 

Sir, without even a pretense of calling tenders on a 
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MR. NEARY: project involving hugh amounts of both Federal 

and Provincial money. Cost-plus benefits· to various and sundry 

contractors that were never in original contracts,or cost-plus 

benefits with no contracts at all,and unlimited extensions of 

contracts upon which any old pretext, Mr. Speaker, could be 

slapped on to these unproductive and careless project managers. 

We have a thousand and one other evidences, Sir, of the careless 

way and the mismanagement in which this project has been 

managed so far. 

Mr. Speaker, if ever this province in the past was 

in need of such it is obvious now, Sir, that we have a most urgent 

need for an investigation, complete, objective and expertly 

directed into every single detail of the mismanagement of our 

medical Health Sciences Complex. If for no other reason, 

Mr. Speaker, only to allay the rightful and widespread suspicions 

of our people 'who are completely browned-off and disillusioned with 

the irresponsibility of government in spending their hard earned 

dollars on this project. We sitting in this House of Assembly, 

Mr. Speaker, owe them this investigation no matter what form it 

takes as long as it appears, Sir, to be an honest investigation 

completely devoid of any attempt to cover uP or to do a whitewash 

job. 

MR. SPEAKER: The bon. Minister of Public Works! 

MR. ROUSSEAU: I would like to say a few things, Hr. Speaker. The 

first thing I would like to say. is that it sometimes bothers me in 

the House of Assembly when the han. the Leader of the Opposition 

- gets up and makes suggestions that,I know something you do not know 

but you do not know if I know it and if you thought I knew it you 

would be very upset. If the Leader of the Opposition or any other 

member across the House has anything to say, say it. I am a man 

of honour,and if anybody can prove that I have done anything wrong 

I know what I have to do. 

2510 



March 10, 1977 Tape 911 JM - 2 

MR. ROUSSEAU: Number two, Mr. Speaker. The Leader of the 

Opposition has a document over there with my name on it and my name, 

my honour and my integrity in June of 1973 in respect t6 the 

management contract. If in any way, shape_ or form that is not 

more advantageous to the province than the original whatever it 

was, agreement or intent,then I am an honourable man and my 

integrity and my honesty is on that.! am prepared, Mr. Speaker, 

to do what I have to do as an honourable man of integrity. I say 

to this House and I say to this Province that that agreement was 

signed which in my opinion and according to my officials was more 

advantageons to the province than anything they had earlier and 

I stand by that and when I have the time I will defend it. 

The other point,and I only have a few minutes,but 

I would just like to point out one thing~how statistics can be 

used, Mr. Speaker. And maybe the hon. Leader of the Opposition 

might recall, because he was Minister of Health at the time 

or .a member of the ·cabin~t, when the original Budget of $45. million 

was brought down for the Health Sciences Complex. Nobody has 

mentioned and maybe nobody might be aware of it or maybe the 

detail escaped the ministerial level but at that time the inflation 

cost built in to completion in 1976 was five percent. Mr. Tom Bursey, 

one of the straightest and most honest civil servants in the 

Civil Service of this Province,played a little game the other day 

with a mathematical calculation. He worked it out instead of 

five percent which it was only' for that one year0 because after 

that it was ten percent)and I have figures here. Cost indexes i~ 

December 1971; the construction cost index was 175.1 and it is 

nov 290.L I do not think anybody would disagree with the fac·ts 

and figures of increased inflation. He played with instead of 

taking five percent as an inflation cost in 197l,which was the 

cost built into the $45. million as the cost of inflation in 1971, 

that they use ten percent, the actual inflation-::cost that came 
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MR. ROUSSEAU: about, the actual cost of the final hospital IJould 

now be in the vicinity of $nl million from $45 'million Just on 

that figure. 

MR. . ROBF.RTS: On a ten ner cent figure? 

MR. ROU~~EAU: At a ten per cent f.igure . Now I am sayin~ that 

because of the five per cent inflation that it is S61 million . 

There are other factors undoubtedly but peonle can olay 

with figures . I would like to make the noint verv strongly that 

in 1971 a five per cent cost of inflation "'as built in at 

a $45 million cost. The cost of 
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inflation in 1971 might well have been five per cent. I do not 

know. But over the years since then - and completion date for 

1977 it has been ten per cent, and as a result of that, of course, 

just by interpolation, just by pure' mathematics, which is not the 

proper way to do it, but just to show how figures can be used, 

the cost would now be more than we estimated the cost to be. 

So, Mr. Speaker, you know, I think peoole have worked 

hard on this project. I think we have had a lot of difficulties 

on this project from various sectors because of the problems we had 

with inflation,cost of material, wages and that sort of thing 

since 1971. There are a lot of reasons why the cost of the complex 

has increased. It is certainly not because of any suggestion that the 

hon. Leader of the Opposition makes or the hon. member for LaPoile 

(Mr. Nearv) might want to make and did not make or whatever, you know, that 

it was part of a grandiose deal by the government and Scrivener. It 

certainly was not. The guys in the Department of Public Works 

worked very .hard for two years from 1971 to 1973, worked very hard 

to come up with that final agreement. The government was proud of 

that agreement. That is why the government tabled the agreement 

in the House of Assembly. If the government was not proud of it 

the last place in the world they would table it would be in the 

House of Assembly. That was tabled with honour and integrity and 

with a deal that government thought was better than the original 

deal of 1971. And I stand by ~t with my signature on it, as I say, 

for my honesty and integrity. And if I have to take any steps because -

SOME RON. MEHBERS: Oh, oh! 

MR. SPEAKER: Order, please! 

}1R. ROUSSEAU:- if I have to take any steps that I think that an honourable 

and integral man should do because of any suggestion or any implication 

in that I will answer the question when the time comes about that in 

detail. In five minutes you cannot do it. But I can assure you gentlemen 

that that name did not go on that document lightly. 

SOME HON. MEHBERS: Hear, hear! 
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MR. SPEAKER: The third matter for debate regards the granting 

of loans to sawmills on the Avalon Peninsula. 

The hon. member for Bellevue. 

SOME RON. MEMBERS: Hear, hear! 

MR. CALLAN: Mr. Speaker, the que;tion that I asked a 

few days ago was: Is it possible to obtain a loan for sawmills 

on the Avalon and the Isthmus of the Avalon? The reason I asked 

the question, Mr. Speaker, is as I understand it, the Department 

of Rural Development says that in order for a sawmill to be viable 

it has to produce more than 60,000 board feet of lumber in a year. 

And now, of course, the Department of Forestry will not issue 

a permit for more than 60,000 board feet on the Avalon and so 

a person who goes and applies for a Rural Development loan is 

caught in a rather strange web. Number one, the Department of 

Rural Development says that in order for a mill to be viable 

you must produce more than 60,000 board feet. The Department of 

Forestry says that the amount of lumber on the Avalon is small, the 

amount of wood, timber and so we will not issue permits for more 

than 60,000 board feet. 

Mr. Speaker, a gentleman came in - as a matter of 

fact several gentleman that I now of came in to the Department of 

Rural Development recently to try and obtain a loan for a sawmill 

and they were told that in view of the fact that you cannot get a 

permit for more than 60,000 board feet, and you must produce more 

than that in order to make it v.iable and to pay back your loan and 

so on, these gentlemen were told that what they should do is go 

back to their communities, surrounding communities, and ask the 

people in the area, would they sign a statement or give them a letter 

or give them some kind of an agreement on paper, that they would sell 

their logs, 200 logs, 300 logs, 400 logs, that they would be cutting 

logs this year and that they would also agree to sell these logs to 

this prospective sawmill owner. 
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Mr. Callan, 

Now, Mr. Speaker, I think that is a ratl\er odd criterion 

on which to base a loan agreement. The answer that I understand 

was given to the Rural Development officials was, "I would not 

go around my colll!ll.unity to get people to put their signatures 

oti. ~omething to bury my own grandfather let alone to try and 

get a Rural Development loan." Mr. Speaker, 
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MR. W. CALLAN: the Minister of Rural Development when he 

answers, I hope he answers and answers directly, and I hope 

we do not get into personalities here in the way of talking 

about the individual members of a district because I am not 

talkin~ about anybody in particular and I hope there are 

no aspersions cast in that manner. 

The Minister of Rural Development in his 

reply may say that sawmills on the Avalon Peninsula 

have failed and this is why we are reluctant to grant more 

loans. Mr. Speaker, I contend that if sawmills have failed 

on the Avalon Peninsula it is not because the sawmill owners 

are lazy or anything of that nature. I think the reason they 

have failed is because they do not have planers to produce 

the top grade lumber. All they have is just the ordinary 

saw,and as I understand it Rural Development is reluctant 

to give these people planers. What they want them to do 

is produce your rough lumber and then sell your rou~h lumber 

NM- 1 

to a larger operation so that that o~eration can plane the 

lumber and as anybody with any common sense knows, Mr. Speaker, 

that is where the cash is. That is where the profit is. It is 

selling the dressed lumber. 

MR. 'Ml:TRPHY: Row much does it cost to get a planer? 

MR. CALLA."'l': Row much? About $7,000. 

So, Hr. Speaker, this is why,because they do not 

have planers and Rural Development it appears do not want these 

sawmill operators to get planers, they want them to sell their 

lumber to the larger operations and of course it is the larger 

operations that make the profit. That is where the profit 

is. One sawmill operator told me that he can spend all day 

at his bench sawing rough lumber and make nothing,hut ~hen come 

back for an hour after supper and he can make more profit in an 

hour than he made all day by just sawing the rough lumber. 
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MR. CALLAN: Why that is and if that is the case, Mr. Speaker, 

I think it is terribly wrong and why it is I do not know. 

Another reason, Mr. Speaker, if sawmills are 

a failure on the Avalon I contend that it is because, and this 

is common knowledge, Mr. Speaker,. that you can go to any dealer 

and buy lumber that is imported right from British Columbia, you 

can buy it cheaper than y6u can buy locally produced lumber. 

The question again is why? And what is the answer'l'-

Mr. Speaker, farmers across this Province have been 

calling for a vegetable bank,a bank where they can put their 

vegetables0 My·suggestion, Mr. Speaker, is that this is what 

is needed in this Province for the lumber industry, a bank 

where these sawmill operators can take their dressed lumber, 

not their·rough lumber, their dressed lumber and sell it and 

of course then resold. 

SOME HON. MEMBERS: Hear! Hear! 

MR. SPEAKER: The hon. Minister of Rural and Industrial Development. 

MR. LUNDRIGAN: Mr. Speaker, I will certainly have a look 

at the recommendation of the hon. gentleman. He has made some 

points, thrown a couple of suggestions across the way. What 

I would have preferred for him to do is, if he had a problem, 

as he is known to have done before, one in narticular in his 

riding where he had a case of a. chap who ~vanted a planer and 

we had a look at it and we did not feel he should have a planer, 

we did not think he was big enough • . HE came down and he was 

able to negotiate for his client and eventually got the planer. 

He is making a suggestion that we should have 

more flexibility in Rural Development. we should be more anxious 

to risk a few dollars,to go out on a bit more on a limb, to go 

with even smaller operators than we have gone with, and I would 

like for him to get his colleague on side with Rural Development 

because a lot of the philosophy he expressed is a personal philosophy 
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MR. LUNDRIGAN: of mine. But I am between the devil and the 

deep blue sea. There is another expression that I could use 

as well in describing the position I find myself in. I find 

every day there is not a member across the way, even including 

the Leader of the Opposition, who does not find a need to come 

through and say, "Look, can you help out So and So? Now he 

has got a little bit of potential~' We are not sure of this 

that and something else and away we go with a very flexible 

programme, one of the best programmes under Rural Development 

Authoritv that we have anywhere in Canada,but I never 

hear the han. gentleman stand up when we get a chance at 

the programme,which is flexible, has a lot of failings, a 

lot of failures. If you are dealing with 1,000 loans you are 

going to have a lot of people that you are not certain of 

and '!'7e are. a bit flexible in making the decision, you are 

going to have problems. 

I never hear bon. gentlemen st:and up and 

say, "Look, !'think you are right on that, go a little 

further on this and the like." Now the hon. gentleman is 

saying to us that you need to go a little further with 

your programme. I would like to advise him that we have 

in the Province over 1,300 mills, we have to be a bit 

selective. You cannot go with an individual who comes in 

and says that I would like n ~:n·nnill. 
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MR. L!TNDRIGAN: 

I have got a license for 20,000 feet of lumber.. At $150 a thousand 

that is $3,000 a year. I have got myself and my young fellow to 

cut lumber. Now I have been in the logging business ever since 1948 

personally. My whole family background is in the field. I know on 

20,000 or 30,000 or 40,000 or 50,000 feet of lumber a year it is 

pretty difficult to make a living. One hundred and fifty dollars 

a thousand rough lumber is a good price. Now he also comes in and 

says, "I would like a planer." We have got to sort of sit back and 

say, "Just a minute now. Even if ~~e loan you the money, even if it 

is interest free, even if it is ten years repayment, we are not certain 

that it can give you an adequate return so that you can pay back the 

loan and make a dollar.'' And we have always ~ot to make these 

judgements because in giving money or loaning money, government 

taxpayers•money, we have got to also be aware of the fact that we 

are leading the indjvidual along a path where he mir;ht invest of his 

engeries in these few dollars and fail. So we make that kind of a 

judgement. 

On a planer, he has made comments about a planer. Every mill 

in the Province cannot hope to have a planer with the feeling that, 

you know,you have got $7,000 or $~,000 or $10,000 of a planer. If 

you do that the ~inimum amortizing of your loan is $2,000 or $3,000 

a year ~rhich means you have to have a cash flow of $20,000 or $25,000 

a year to make a dollar on your loan. These are judgements we make. 

Now he made a comment about central planer operation as a concept. 

Jamestot~ is an example of ~mere that has worked very, very effectively, 

where an individual, a young chap - is the hon. member aware of it? 

MR. CALLA.~ : I am not talking about a central place. A bank. 

_MR.. LU1"DRIGAN: What does the bon. gentleman mean by a bank? Is 

it a place where there is equipment where he can take his logs or 

his lumber in to manufacture it? 

AN HON. MEMBER: A mill cutter.· 

_l!R. LUNDRIGAN: lie is talking about a central planer mill concept. 
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MR. PECKFORD: 

No, he is not. He is talking about everybody having their own 

planer and then after they have planed their lumber they go out and 

sell it to the central-

MR. ROBERTS: Mr. Speaker, really. I mean,let the minister say 

What he has to say. 

MR. LUNDRIGIIN: I thought the hon. gentleman was making a suggestion 

along the lines of a central planer mill where you have -

MR.. CALL/IN : No,marketing. 

MR. LUNDRIGAN: Well, Jamestown lumber. Go do~m to Jamestown 

and have a look at an interesting concept of a young chap Who has 

got all kinds of energy and drive and capabUity. He was able to 

get the owners in a particular area to work together in pooling 

all their lumber. They have a central mill. All of the o~mers of 

the sawmills, these small little operators,~ave put so much equity 

into this business and they are carrying on their operation very 

successfully. They avail of our little loan progra~e for working 

capital every year. They repay it religiously. They are making a 

dollar because they have an appreciation of the value of their 

raw product in the manufactured form which means he gets $200 a 

thousand rather than $125 or $130. But that concept, "r. Speaker, 

is only able to be carried on bY. private business people. If anybo~y 

is interested in that concept I 1'ould be most anxious H they ca~e 

forward. 

Meanwhile,if the member has particular cases that he is not 

happy with, drop me a note and I ~rill have a look at them. 

HR. SPEAKER: 

now adjourn. 

MR. HICIG!AN: 

The motion before the Chair. is that this House do 

The hon. }finister of Justice. 

Mr. Speaker, I move that the House on its rising do 

adjourn until tomorrow, Friday, at ten of the clock and that thj_s 

Rouse do now adjourn. 

~'R. SPEAKER: The motion is that the House do now adourn until 

tomorrow, Friday, at ten of the clock. Those in favour "Aye". 

Contrary, "Nay". In my opinion the "Aye's" have it. The House 

stands adjourned until tomorrow, Friday, at ten o'clock. 
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MAR 1 0 1977 
AnSVIer to quesLion 120 by the llonouraul~ Mini~Ler o.r lliuc;ation as 

requested by the Honourable Merrber for LaPoile on the order paper 

February 17, 1977 . 

Answer: 

1. No information has been provided other than the fact that the 

houses sold were appraised by a Real Estate appraiser and were 

sold after being advertised internally at the going market price . 

2. The University owns no houses in the city of St. John's at the 

present time . 
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MAR 1 0 1977 
Answer to question number 121 by the Honourable Minister of 

Education as requested by the Honourablelo Menber for La.R>ile 

on the order paper February 17, 1977. , 

Ansver: 

1. Yes. 

2. Approximately $60, 000 a year; the greater part of which is 

used to pay interest on the loan. 

3. It varies between 18 and 28. 

4. There are no f ull-time staff at Harlow. It is operated on 

a part-t£me basis by University staff. 
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Question #198 

Mr. Neary (LaPoile) 

Reference to questions regarding the Board of Commissioners of 

Public Utilities. 

Question #1 98 

Members 

Clarence \i. Pol-Tell, Chairman 

Charles W. Earle, Vice Chairman 

George F. Lawrence 

Reginald E. Good 

Question #2 

Salaries 

-, $40,000. 

32,400. 

24,840. 

24,840. 

Frederick Saunders, Clerk of the 3oard & Executive Director $23 '139. 


